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Financial Highlights for Normaliz
Year Ended May 31

(In thousands, except per share data)

Revenues

Operating Income

Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation
and Amortization (EBITDA)

Net Income

Total Current Assets

Total Liabilities

Shareholders’ Equity

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Basic Earnings per Share

Diluted Earnings per Share

Basic Shares

Diluted Shares

revenues
(in millions)

500 20
450 75
400 60
350 45
300 30

250 15

200 - y
2000 2001 2002
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ed Results*

2002
$462,826
$82,411

$111,982
$46,633
$79,457
$109,889
$296,288
$160,468
$1.27
$1.23
36,589
38,009

operating income
(in millions)

2001
$350,315
$60,714

$82,469
$30,949
$136,498
$148,730
$271,022
$78,614
$1.08
$1.06
28,616
29,134

diluted earnings per share

$1.30

$1.25

$1.20

$1.15

$1.10

$1.05

$1.00

2000 2001 2002

* Normalized results for FY 2002 exclude non-recurring restructuring and other charges and a change in accounting principle.

Normalized results for FY 2001 exclude the impact of divested businesses and other non-recurring items and include certain

pro forma costs assuming the spin from National Data Corporation occurred on June 1, 1999. Please refer to Note 12 in the

Consolidated Financial Statements included in the Company's Form 10-K for a detailed discussion of the restructuring and

other charges.
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s we

look
back on the
past year, it
is with both
deep satis-
faction and
profound grief.
Our achievements have been truly
noteworthy, with financial accom-
plishments that belie a challenging
economy. Yet none of us can ever
or will ever forget the tragedy
that befell our nation on
September 11, 2001.

To support fund-raising efforts to
benefit the victims of the tragedy,
Global helped facilitate the processing
of credit and debit card donations

to the United Way September 11

Telethon. We were honored to

a letter from the President and CEQ

be able to support these efforts
and waived all fees related to
these transactions.

Despite the horrific acts of those

who seek to destroy our way
of life, we, like so many others,
were intensely shaken by the
results of that fateful day.
However, we have sustained

our day-to-day activities with

a renewed sense of resolve that

our job, our duty, is to maintain

a sense of normalcy and to persevere

and thrive.

Focused
Your company achieved significant
growth during fiscal year 2002,
Despite a less-than-favorable
economic climate, Global Payments’
annual revenue for the fiscal year
ended May 31, 2002 grew by 32%
to $462.8 million. This resulted in
an increase in normalized net income
of 51% to $46.6 million-and fully
diluted earnings per share of $1.23,
a 16% increase from 2001. These
results compare to the prior
year’s normalized revenues of $350.3
million, net income of $30.9 million,
and diluted earnings per share of
$1.06. We continue to be a strong
generator of cash, with EBITDA of
$112.0 million for the year.

Accountable

Consumer trust in corporate
accounting practices has been
undermined in recent months by

a few, well-publicized problems.

As a publicly held company, we are

under constant scrutiny, which is

magnified by our role as a payment
processor. As a member of the Listed
Company Advisory Committee (LCAC)
to the New York Stock Exchange
Board of Directors, I have expressed
my support for new, more exacting

guidelines on corporate governance.

At Global Payments, accountability
goes deeper than our on-going inde-
pendent financial audits. Internal
procedures prescribe that we report
results and make projections based
on reality rather than hopes.
Managers are held accountable for
achieving planned results and operat-
ing in a cost-effective manner. And
our customers hold us accountable
24-hours-a-day, seven-days-a-week,
365-days-a-year, for providing reli-
able services that allow them to
function at maximum productivity.
The result is a corporate culture that
believes in revealing issues rather
than hiding them, that understands
the trust placed upon us and
functions based on the highest
ethical principles.

Value

Adding value to our products and
services continues to guide our
activities, and is one way we have
created a larger, more loyal customer
base. With such innovations as
online access to detailed informa-
tion, feature-rich mobile processing
options and continuing certification
of emerging technologies, the cre-
ation of customer value is a strong
driving force behind much of our

operations.




We believe that by providing our
customers with products and services
that represent a true value, our

shareholders will benefit as well.

Adveocate

Serving as a customer advocate is
another means of providing value to
our customers. For small- to mid-tier
merchants, it can be daunting to
navigate the maze of credit card
rules and regulations. The tools we
provide our merchants allow them
to successfully resolve chargeback
issues, as well as better manage risk.
Additionally, we provide a rich
resource of information on
compliance issues and other
processing information, such as
fraud tips, for use by all merchants

accessing our website.

Because Global Payments represents
a large collection of merchants -
over one million points of service

at last count — our influence is far
greater than it might be otherwise.
Whether it’s serving as an intermedi-
ary between a merchant and card
issuer, or proactively seeking more
benefits for merchants, Global
Payments is deeply committed to

its role as a merchant advocate.

Agile

Altering the course of a large ship
takes time, whereas a smaller vessel
can maneuver more easily. While
Global Payments ranks as a leader

in the payments processing industry,

we are small enough to be nimble

and swift. This allows us to take
advantage of opportunities and react

quickly to emerging trends.

Our expansion into the Canadian
market is a perfect example of how
acting rapidly and decisively worked
to benefit Global and our shareholders.
The lack of duality in the Canadian
marketplace offered an opportunity
that we seized, providing customers
with a single source for Visa® and

MasterCard® processing.

Through the acquisition of the
merchant acquiring portfolios of
Canadian Imperial Bank of
Commerce (CIBC) in FY 2001 and
the National Bank of Canada, com-
pleted in FY 2002, Global Payments
has become the largest independent
acquirer in Canada with an unequaled

advantage in that market.

Strategic

Our focus continues to be on
organic growth in both domestic
and international markets in our
core Direct, Indirect, ISO and
Check businesses. Our strategy

is to present best-in-class services
and products through Global
employees who are knowledgeable
of our customers’ unique needs

and motivated to provide solutions.

We will also continue to seek domes-
tic and international acquisition
opportunities in the payments space
that offer near-term accretion with
strong consolidation potential. Both
strategies support our commitments

to not only grow, but to increase our

market share in our core businesses.

Dedicated

Our staff’s unwavering commitment
to providing reliable transaction
processing and outstanding customer
service has helped to make Global
Payments a leader. We completed

our management team during FY
2002 with outstanding additions
who brought industry expertise

and a true sense of passion to their

new positions.

Our success was recognized in June
when Global Payments was named
one of “The Information Technology
100” by BusinessWeek magazine in
the publication’s Annual Report on
Technology Companies. We were
ranked number 59 in the world, and
number 23 in the important category
of shareholder return.

I look back at the successes of this
year with pride; I look forward

to the challenges of the future with
a heightened sense of optimism
and confidence. Thank you for
your continued support.

Sincerely,

Paul R. Garcia

President and
Chief Executive Officer
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The payment processing industry
continues to thrive, despite
fluctuations in the economy:. It is
an attractive industry, with a vast
and expanding worldwide market,
high recurring revenues and strong
operating margins and cash flow.
However, for a company wishing
to enter the industry, there are high
barriers to entry, creating a strong
advantage for Global Payments,

which has over 30 years experience.

Further strengthening Global’s
market position is an experienced
management team with the
expertise to take advantage of

the company’s distribution model.
With growth fueled by acquisitions,
partnerships and aggressive sales
strategies, Global Payments will con-

tinue to gain share in our markets.

Direct Sales
Global’s direct sales group, strategi-
cally located throughout the United
States and Canada, focuses primarily
on “mid-market” merchants. Global’s
comprehensive product offerings
include check, debit, credit,

EBT, stored value, gift card and
emerging payments services.
The company’s expertise

in serving diverse verti-
cal markets, both in
terms of product
development and
sales focus, helped
to cushion Global
against economic
turmoil during

FY 2002.

=W e U W U e WY

‘ocused on our customers’ prosperity

Our direct sales channel also includes
Independent Sales Organizations
(ISOs) that purchase merchant serv-
ices from Global and then repackage
them for sale to their customers.

By strategically expanding ISO
relationships, Global is benefiting
from a strong sales engine that allows
us to aggressively and profitably

service small merchant customers.

The Global Payments alliance with
Comerica Bank remains a significant
component of our expansion
strategy for the U.S. West Coast
and Midwest as well as Texas. In
addition, Global continues to work
with associations to become their
preferred provider, thereby enhanc-

ing vertical market penetration.

In order to improve efficiency,
reduce costs and speed merchant
enrollment, Global Payments moved
to an electronic merchant enrollment
format during 2002. Merchant
Enrollment @dvantage™ gives Global
a strong market edge when signing
up new merchants. With a single,
comprehensive point of entry for
all services offered by Global as
well as an expedited process,

it cuts approval time by
over 50%. After an initial
trial period in 2001, the
program successfully rolled
out company-wide in 2002.

Indirect Sales

The indirect sales channel focuses on
financial institutions, which offer
Global’s services to their customers.
Accounting for approximately 20%
of Global’s revenues, the company
partners with hundreds of financial
institutions of all sizes to help them
deliver the payment processing
solutions their commercial cus-
tomers need. Global’s services allow
financial institutions to maximize
customer relationships, generate

fee income and attract new
customers by providing the right
mix of quality, value-added

financial commerce solutions.

Despite continuing consolidations
within the banking industry,
Global’s indirect sales channel has
been able to maintain a consistent
revenue stream. The company
continues to seek marketing
alliances with banks throughout

North America.

Global’s funds transfer area produces
a steady revenue stream that accounts
for 3% of the company’s total rev-
enues. Global works with a host of
leading, multi-national corporations
and government agencies to provide
cost-effective electronic commerce
solutions. The company’s traditional
cash management, EDI and informa-
tion reporting services help reduce
paper processing costs, initiate

and accelerate the receipt of funds

and improve information flow.

“When you combine Global’s excellent people with our
experience, breadth of services and dynamic sales strategies,

we are well positioned for outstanding growth.”

Jeffery C. McWey

Executive Vice President and
Chief Marketing Officer
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moving to the forefront with great agiliity

Canadian Sales Distribution

NATIONAL
BANK

586

\/

1,770 Branches

Global Payments, as part of a
strategy to enhance its North
American presence and serve
companies that operate in Canada
and the U.S.; has created marketing
alliances with two of the strongest
financial institutions in Canada.
During FY 2002, Global completed
merchant card services acquisitions
and converted processing to new
platforms to achieve operating

synergies and reduce costs.

The acquisition of National Bank

of Canada’s merchant card business
was completed in October 2001.

The addition of National Bank of
Canada’s merchant acquiring business
gives Global Payments a leadership
presence in Quebec. National Bank
is Canada’s second largest MasterCard
merchant acquirer and a leading
Canadian online debit card acquirer.
To date, Global has signed over

$2 billion in MasterCard and

Visa sales volume by offering

combined services.

Nava Scotia

New Brunswick [ ionen
e
19 27

The acquisition of the merchant
acquiring business of Canadian
Imperial Bank of Commerce (CIBC)
was completed in FY 2001, and the
back-end processing for the CIBC
merchant base was converted during
FY 2002. The complicated process
involving approximately 140,000
merchant locations not only resulted
in cost reductions for the near-term
and future, it provided an opportuni-
ty to increase customer satisfaction
by providing the first single state-
ment for Visa and MasterCard and
expanding customer support opera-

tions.

The CIBC and National Bank
acquisitions include 10-year
marketing alliances with the
respective financial institutions.
Global receives referrals from the
banks’ combined branch locations
numbering over 1,700. The opportu-
nities offered by the Canadian
market have already proven valuable,
and Global will continue to reap

rewards in the years ahead.

Providing Value for
Canadian Merchants

By bringing together Visa and
MasterCard processing under a
single company, Global Payments has
been able to provide merchants with
benefits that are not available from
bank processors in Canada. As part
of Global’s mission, “To be the leader
in the delivery of payments and
associated information,” several
initiatives were undertaken during

the past year.

One of the major changes for the
Canadian market took place in
February, when the company
launched Statement @dvantage™,

a consolidated billing statement

that has improved operations for
Canadian merchants. Traditionally,
Canadian merchants have received
multiple statements — one from their
Visa acquirer and another from their
MasterCard acquirer. Statement
@dvantage combines Visa,
MasterCard and debit transactions,
as well as summary transactions for
other card types, including American

Express® and Diners Club®,

A single statement allows merchants
to reconcile Visa and MasterCard
total sales, enabling them to operate
more effectively. It provides detailed
billing and related point-of-sale serv-
ices information, as well as enhanced
chargeback reporting and monitoring
features. This strong management
tool enhances customer satisfaction
and loyalty while differentiating
Global from competitors in the

Canadian marketplace.
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Glebal Access
@dvantage™
In 2002, Global
Payments made major
improvements to its
online reporting sys-
tem, creating Global
Access @dvantage. This
powerful, secure data
retrieval and manage-
ment tool provides
Global merchant
customers with online
access to current
and historical transac-
tion, payment and
reporting information.
Customers have next-day
access to authorized and
settled transaction data
and can even export
raw transaction data
to databases or print the edge in
performance reports.
market.”
Global Access @dvantage
also provides financial institutions

and ISOs full control over merchant

“The new products

created by Global

Payments give

Barry W. Lawson
Executive Vice President and cystomer on_

and services

our customers

a competitive

i (=) B <) B
serving as an advocate for our customers ; fre
(@
Global’s innovations in the card that electronically delivers ®
wireless arena have made it Federal- and State-funded Food .
the Jargest wireless processor Stamps and Cash Benefits to
in North America. qualified EBT recipients. -
© e
Debit In a retail environment, the EBT S
Debit cards are the card bas dual capabilities. An EBT -
fastest growing Food Stamp customer is able to
payment method in the  purchase eligible food items, or the =
United States, account- card can be used like a debit card ©
ing for nearly 26% of for cash benefits. The EBT program
all retail transactions, simplifies merchants’ accounting ™
and already are the processes and reduces their labor o
preferred form of pay- costs by eliminating paper process- o
ment in Canada. Global  ing of Food Stamps, requiring N X
Payments enhanced its minimal equipment and eliminating d
debit acceptance program network fees.
in 2002, offering merchants —
everything needed to begin  Gaming
accepting debit payments, Global Payments continues to be "
including equipment, a leader in the specialized vertical g
installation, training and market of gaming, with new features §
24-hour customer support. for the VIP Preferred™ Cash Access El
Systems spurring growth during -§ s
Not only do merchants 2002. The latest release of the VIP o g

meet a growing demand

and improve

Chief Information Officer

information with the ability to
manage merchant portfolio records,
conduct interchange research and

verify transactions.

Wireless

The advent of debit cards along with
an increased consumer dependence
on credit cards has created a demand
for wireless transaction processing.
With Global’s services, merchants
can provide credit and debit card
processing for mobile and temporary
locations such as outdoor conces-
sions, stadiums, parking lots,

delivery companies, kiosks,

limousines, etc.

alty with debit
cards, studies show their customers
tend to spend more; 24% more
when using a debit card versus
cash and 17% more than when they
pay by check. Because the money
is automatically deducted from
the cardholder’s checking account
when a purchase is made, risk is

substantially reduced.

EBT

In 2002, Global Payments added
Electronic Benefits Transfer (EBT)
to the payment acceptance options
offered to merchants. The EBT

card is a magnetic-striped plastic

Preferred proprietary software
provides the gaming industry with
the tools to establish up to $10,000
revolving check cashing limits for
their customers in as little as 45

seconds.

Because VIP Preferred cardholders
have fast access to cash with high
limits, gaming establishments can
increase money to their floor and
eliminate associated risk because
transactions are 100 percent guaran-
teed. Global also offers an electronic
check option, VIP Preferred e-Check,
which eliminates the need for paper
checks, as part of the VIP Preferred

suite of products.
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ensuring trust by being accountable for our actions

During 2002, Global Payments
undertook several initiatives
designed to enhance productivity
and increase profitability today
and in the future. In addition to
integrating the merchant acquiring
platforms of CIBC and Imperial
Bank, the company also completed
a successful consolidation on its

West Platform.

Global Payments opened a new,
85,000 square foot operations and
customer service center in Owings
Mills, Maryland, just outside
Baltimore. Custom-built for Global,
the facility, which opened in August
2001, was designed to provide a
pleasant, efficient work environment
for the approximately 500 employees

at that location.

The center provides account support,
customer service, business devel-
opment and sales support for
over one million Global
Payments merchant locations.
The state-of-the-art center
has monitors throughout
that provide immediate
feedback on service

levels, as well as

1\

“By upgrading and streamling operations,
we not only reduce costs, but increase the

level of service we provide customers.”

James G. Kelly
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

distribution of company announce-
ments. The new facility replaces
the offices previously located in

Hanover, Maryland.

Global will also open a new office

in Toronto in August 2002 to consol-
idate the two locations currently
operating in Toronto and support
the integration of the National

Bank of Canada’s merchant

acquiring operations.

Global has not only excelled
in creating a “brick and mortar”
presence, the company was
recognized by a leading industry
publication as one of the top 10
acquirers in the U.S. Global was
also awarded their “GSQ Select
#1 Website”. The accolade stated,
“In our view, Global’'s Web work
is the best in the industry to date.
The Global site is fast, intuitive,
attractive and, most of all,
directed at its dual customers —
merchants and those
who partner to sell to

merchants.”
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE CONMIMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549
ORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended May 31, 2002
OR
[ TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TQ SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition pericd from to
Commission File No. 001-16111
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GLOBAL PAYMENTS INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in charter)

Georgia 58-2567903
(State or other jurisdiction of (L.R.S. Employer
incorperation or organization) Identification Ne.)
Four Corporate Square, Atlanta, Georgia 30329-2009
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code:  404-728-2719

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(h) of the Act:
Name of each exchange

Title of each class on which registered
Common Stock, No Par Value New York Stock Exchange
Series A Junior Participating Preferred Share Purchase Rights New York Stock Exchange
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:
NONE
(Title of Class)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the
registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past
90 days. Yes No []

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filer pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not
contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or
information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this
Form 10-K.

As of August 15, 2002, the aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates (assuming for
these purposes, but not conceding, that all named executive officers, directors, and shareholders owning 25% or
more of the outstanding shares of common stock are “affiliates” of the Registrant) was $690,125,195 based upon
the last reported sale price on The New York Stock Exchange on August 15, 2002.

The number of shares of the registrant’s common stock outstanding at August 15, 2002 was 36,859,328
shares.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Specifically identified portions of the registrant’s proxy statement for the 2002 annual meeting of
shareholders are incorporated by reference in Part III.
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SPECIAL CAUTIONARY NOTICE REGARDING
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

We believe that it is important to communicate our plans and expectations about the future to our
shareholders and to the public. Some of the statements we use in this report, and in some of the documents we
incorporate by reference in this report contain forward-looking statements concerning our business operations,
economic performance and financial condition, including in particular, our business strategy and means to
implement the strategy, the amount of future capital expenditures, our success in developing and introducing new
products and expanding our business, the successful integration of existing and future acquisitions, and the
timing of the introduction of new and modified products or services. You can sometimes identify forward
looking-statements by our use of the words “believes, T

EEINTY

anticipates,” “expects,” ‘“‘intends” and similar
expressions. For these statements, we claim the protection of the safe harbor for forward-looking statements
contained in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.

Although we believe that the plans and expectations reflected in or suggested by our forward-looking
statements are reasonable, those statements are based on a number of assumptions and estimates that are
inherently subject to significant risks and uncertainties, many of which are beyond our control, cannot be
foreseen, and reflect future business decisions that are subject to change. Accordingly, we cannot guarantee you
that our plans and expectations will be achieved. Cur actual revenues, revenue growth and margins, other results
of operation and shareholder values could differ materially from those anticipated in our forward-looking
statements as a result of many known and unknown factors, many of which are beyond our ability to predict or
control. These factors include, but are not limited to, those set forth in Exhibit 99.1 to this report, those set forth
elsewhere in this report and those set forth in our press releases, reports and other filings made with the Securities
and Exchange Commission. These cautionary statements qualify all of our forward-looking statements and you
are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements.

Our forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they are made and should not be relied upon as
representing our plans and expectations as of any subsequent date. While we may elect to update or revise
forward-looking statements at some time in the future, we specifically disclaim any obligation to publicly release
the results of any revisions to our forward-looking statements.

PARTI

ITEM I—BUSINESS
General Developments
The following is a discussion of significant business developments during fiscal 2002.

Purchase of MasterCard International’s Interest in Global Payment Systems LLC

In August 2001, we purchased the 7.5% minority interest owned by MasterCard International Incorporated
in our subsidiary, Global Payment Systems LLC. The transaction was effective as of June 1, 2001.

Owings Mills Consolidation

In August 2001, we closed a 35,000 square foot facility in Hanover, Maryland and completed and opened an
85,000 square foot facility for operations and customer service functions in Owings Mills, Maryland (a suburb,
northwest of Baltimore). The new facility has the capacity to accommodate up to 500 employees and is used for
account support, customer service, telemarketing and sales support personnel.

Purchase of National Bank of Canada’s Merchant Acquiring Business

On September 30, 2001, we acquired National Bank of Canada’s or National Bank, merchant acquiring
business and formed a ten-year alliance with National Bank in order to market merchant payment-related
products and services to National Bank’s customers. Prior to our acquisition, National Bank processed
approximately 225 million transactions per year for more than 73,000 points of service throughout Canada and
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received referrals from their approximately 600 branch locations. The purchase price was $45.9 million (U.S.) at
the then current Canadian exchange rate. This acquisition, in combination with the Canadian Imperial Bank of
Commerce or CIBC acquisition, which we completed in March 2001, has made us the largest publicly-traded,
independent MasterCard and Visa acquirer in Canada and has given us the capability to provide Canadian
businesses with one source for all of their Visa, MasterCard, debit and other payment processing requirements.

Back-end Conversions

As part of our ongoing strategy to integrate our acquisitions, we have completed two back-end conversions
during fiscal 2002. During the second quarter of fiscal 2002, we converted approximately 140,000 CIBC
merchant accounts to our back-end processing platform including settlement, chargeback, and help desk
functions. In addition, during the third quarter of fiscal 2002, we converted approximately 20,000 Imperial Bank
merchant accounts to our back-end processing platform. We expect to convert National Bank’s merchant
accounts onto our back-end operating platform during the second quarter of fiscal 2003.

Business Description
General

As an electronic transaction processor, we enable consumers, corporations, and government agencies to
purchase goods and services through the use of credit and debit cards. Cur role is to serve as an intermediary in
the exchange of information and funds that must occur between merchants and card issuers before a transaction
can be completed. Including our time as part of National Data Corporation, now known as NDCHealth or NDC,
we have provided credit card transaction processing services since 1968. During that period, we have expanded
our business to include debit card, business-to-business purchasing card, check guarantee, check verification and
recovery, and terminal management services, and collectively refer to these as our merchant service offerings. In
addition, we provide funds transfer services to domestic and international financial institations, corporations, and
government agencies in the United States, Canada, and Europe. We were incorporated in the state of Georgia as
Global Payments Inc. in September 2000.

Although a card transaction may appear simplistic, the transaction requires a complex process involving
various participants in a series of electronic connections. Aside from electronic transaction processors,
participants in this process include card issuers, cardholders, merchants, and card associations. Card issuers are
financial institutions that issue credit cards to approved applicants and are identifiable by their trade name
typically imprinted on the issued cards. The approved applicant is referred to as a cardholder, and may be any
entity for which an issuer wishes to extend a line of credit, such as a consumer, a corporation, or a government
agency.

The term merchant generally refers to any organization that accepts credit or debit cards for the payment of
goods and services, such as retail stores, restaurants, corporate purchasing departments, universities, and
government agencies. The cardholder may use the card at any merchant location that meets the qualification
standards of the card associations, known as MasterCard and VISA, or other card issuers such as American
Express, Discover, Diners Club and debit networks such as Interac. The card associations consist of members,
generally financial institutions, who establish uniform regulations that govern much of the industry.

Before a merchant accepts a credit or debit card as a payment alternative to cash, it must receive information
from the card issuer that the card is authentic and that the impending transaction value will not cause the
cardholder to exceed defined limits. The merchant must be compensated for the value of the purchased good,
which also involves the card issuer. The card issuer then seeks reimbursement from the cardholder in the form of
a monthly credit card bill or by debiting the cardholder’s bank account. The merchant and the card issuer,
however, generally do not interface directly with each other, but, instead rely on electronic transaction
processors, such as Global Payments, and card associations to exchange the required information and funds.

As an electronic transaction processor, we serve as an intermediary in the exchange of information and
funds between merchants and card associations for credit card transactions and between merchants and financial




institutions for debit card transactions. Credit card transactions and debit card transactions account for
approximately 75% and 25%, respectively, of our total transactions processed. The card associations then use
either a system known as interchange, in the case of credit cards, or the debit networks in the case of debit cards,
to transfer the information and funds between electronic transaction processors and card issuers, and complete
the link between merchants and card issuers. Electronic transaction processors generally advance payment to
merchants for credit and debit card transactions before receiving the interchange or debit transaction
reimbursement from the card issuers. This business model differs from the business model followed by electronic
transaction processors in the United States, in that, in the United States, merchant funding primarily occurs after
the electronic transaction processor receives the funds from the card issuer.

Based on our total revenues and on industry publications such as The Nilson Report, we believe that we are
one of the largest electronic transaction processors in the world. In addition, we are cuirently a leading mid-
market merchant acquirer in the United States and the largest, publicly-traded independent VISA and MasterCard
acquirer in Canada. While we service all industry segments, we specialize in the mid-market segment in the
United States and larger volume segments in Canada. We define mid-market as a merchant with an average of
$250 thousand to $300 thousand in annual VISA and/or MasterCard volume. We provide services directly to our
merchant customers, as well as to financial institutions and independent sales organizations that purchase and
resell our services to their own portfolio of merchant customers. Our key markets include merchant customers in
the following vertical industries: government, restaurant, universities, gaming, retail and health care.

We offer end-to-end services, which means that we believe that we have the ability to fulfill all of our
customers’ needs with respect to electronic transaction processing. We market our services through a variety of
sales channels that includes a large, dedicated sales force, independent sales organizations, independent sales
representatives, an internal telesales group, trade associations, alliance and agent bank relationships, and
financial institutions.

Industry Overview and Target Markets

We believe that significant opportunities exist for continued growth in the application of transaction
processing services to the electronic commerce market. Although a large percentage of retail transactions still
utilize cash, merchants encourage electronically authorized and settled transactions using credit and debit cards
as a more efficient means of transacting business with their customers. The rapid growth of retail credit card
transactions, as well as the increased utilization of debit cards, directly correlates with the historic growth of our
business. In the United States, total consumer spending is expected to continue to increase, along with an
increase in the percentage using forms of payment other than cash and checks, i.e., credit and debit cards and
other electronic means. Based on The Nilson Report, we believe that more than $2.1 trillion of annual consumer
spending is charged using VISA and MasterCard. In Canada, we expect to benefit from similar consumer
spending trends. We also believe that over $217 billion (Canadian) or approximately $141 billion (U.S.), of
annual Canadian consumer spending uses VISA, MasterCard or debit as the form of payment.

We believe that the proliferation of “loyalty” or co-branded cards that provide consumers with added
benefits for card use should contribute to increased use of credit and debit cards in the future. Finally, as
merchants and consumers continue to use electronic commerce as a means to purchase goods and services, both
the consumer-to-business and business-to-business aspects of electronic commerce will demand a growing array
of transaction processing and support services. Each of these market trends should increase demand for our
services.

Business-to-business electronic data interchange using purchasing card technology and associated systems
software provides businesses with increased efficiency and us with strong growth in industries that have not
traditionally utilized credit cards. Purchasing cards and the related business-to-business electronic data
interchange replace the costly, time-consuming paper ordering and invoicing with inexpensive, real-time
electronic payment processing transactions.

We believe that the number of electronic transactions will continue to grow in the future and that an
increasing percentage of these transactions will be processed through emerging technologies, such as wireless
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payment products, stored value cards and other custom payment solutions. These emerging technologies will be a
major factor in accelerating the continued conversion from paper transaction processing to electronic transaction
processing, which will result in greater growth opportunities for our business.

Payment processing service providers, such as Global Payments, provide high volume electronic transaction
processing and support services directly to banking institutions and to new entrants into the business. The shift in
the industry from traditional financial institution providers to independent providers is due in large part to more
efficient distribution channels, as well as increased technological capabilities required for the rapid and efficient
creation, processing, handling, storage, and retrieval of information. These capabilities have become increasingly
complex, requiring significant capital commitments to develop, maintain, and update the systems necessary to
provide these advanced services at a competitive price.

As a result of the continued growth in our industry, several large merchant processors, including us, have
expanded operations through the creation of alliances or joint ventures with banks and have acquired new
merchant portfolios from banks that previously serviced these merchant accounts.

Strategy

Our business strategy centers on providing a full range of electronic transaction processing services in the
markets we serve. We believe that this strategy provides the greatest opportunity for leveraging our existing
infrastructure and maintaining a consistent base of recurring revenues. We believe that the electronic commerce
market presents additional attractive opportunities for continued growth. In pursuing our business strategy, we
seek both to increase our penetration of existing markets and to continue to identify and create new markets, such
as the electronic commerce market, and further leverage our infrastructure through the following:

o development of value-added applications, enhancement of existing products, and development of new
systems and services;

o expansion of distribution channels, primarily direct card and independent sales organizations or ISOs
and value added resellers or VARs;

° acquisition, investments, and alliances with companies that have compatible products, services,
development capabilities and distribution capabilities in the direct card business (domestic and
internationally); and

e systems integrations, primarily consolidation of operating platforms, across North America.

Products and Services

We operate in one business segment, electronic transaction processing, and provide products and services
through our merchant services and funds transfer offerings.

Merchant Services

Our merchant services offerings include credit and debit card transaction processing, business-to-business
purchasing card transaction processing, check guarantee, check verification and recovery, gift and loyalty card
processing and terminal management services.

Credit card and business-to-business purchasing card processing are essentially the same service. Credit
card processing describes a consumer acquiring goods or services from a retail location, whereas business-to-
business card processing refers to a corporate purchasing department acquiring goods, such as office supplies or
raw materials, from a corporate vendor. We also provide certain debit card transaction processing services, which
are similar to credit card transactions, except that the information and funds are exchanged between the merchant
and a cardholder’s personal bank account, instead of between the merchant and a credit card issuer.
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Our card processing services can be marketed in several distinct categories: authorization, electronic draft
capture, settlement, retrieval of credit card receipts, chargeback resolution, merchant accounting, risk
management, and support services. We derive revenue for these services primarily based on a percentage of
transaction value or on a specified amount per transaction. We also typically charge for various processing fees,
unrelated to the number of transactions or the transaction value.

Authorization and electronic draft capture are related services that generally refer to the process whereby the
card issuer indicates whether a particular credit card is authentic and whether the impending transaction value
will cause the cardholder to exceed a defined limit. The authorization process typically begins when a cardholder
presents a card for payment at a merchant location and the merchant swipes the card’s magnetic strip through a
point of sale terminal card reader. The terminal electronically records sales draft information, such as the credit
card identification number, transaction date, and dollar value of the goods or services purchased, and then
automatically dials a pre-programmed phone number connected to the network of an electronic transaction
processor, such as Global Payments. The electronic transaction processor then routes the request to the applicable
card association, such as MasterCard or Visa. The card association then routes the authorization request to the
card issuer, who determines a response based on the status of the cardholder’s account. The response is then
returned to the merchant’s terminal via the same communication network. This entire authorization and response
process occurs within seconds from the time the merchant swipes the cardholder’s card through the point of sale
terminal card reader.

After a transaction has been authorized, the merchant must be compensated for the value of the purchased
good or service, which is typically described as settlement. We use our network telecommunication infrastructure
and the Federal Reserve’s Automated Clearing House system, or ACH in the United States and the Automated
Clearing Settlement System, or ACSS, and the Large Value Transfer System, or LVTS, both in Canada, to ensure
that our merchants receive the proper funds due to them for the value of the goods or services that the cardholder
purchased. We also provide retrieval of credit card receipts and chargeback resolution services, both of which
relate to cardholders disputing an amount that has been charged to their credit card. We not only retrieve the
original sales draft from the merchant location, but also review the dispute and handle the related exchange of
information and funds between the merchant and the card issuer if a charge is to be reversed.

Our merchant accounting services provide information to monitor portfolio performance, control expenses,
disseminate information, and track profitability through the production and distribution of detailed statements
summarizing electronic transaction processing activity. Qur risk management services allow financial institutions
to monitor credit risk, thereby enhancing the profitability of their merchant portfolios. Our risk management
services include credit underwriting, credit scoring, fraud control, account processing, and collections. We also
provide our customers with various support services, such as working with merchants to set-up their credit card
programs or resolving issues relating to their terminal card readers.

Check guarantee services include comprehensive check verification and guarantee services designed for a
merchant’s specific needs and risk adversity. Since this service offering guarantees payment of all checks that are
electronically verified (primarily using point-of-sale check readers) through our extensive database, merchants
may safely expand their revenue base by applying less stringent requirements when accepting checks from
consumers. If a verified check is dishonored, our check guarantee service generally provides the merchant with
reimbursement of the check’s face value, and then pursues collection of the check through our internal collection
services. To protect against this risk, we use verification databases that contain information on historical
delinquent check writing activity and up-to-date consumer bank account status. We derive revenue for these
services primarily by charging the merchant a percentage of the face value of each guaranteed check.

In the specialized vertical market of gaming, we released our VIP Preferred proprietary software, which
provides the gaming industry with the tools to establish up to $10,000 revolving check cashing limits for the
casinos’ customers. Because VIP Preferred cardholders have fast access to cash with high limits, gaming
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establishments can increase money to their floor and eliminate associated risk because transactions are 100
percent guaranteed. We also offer an electronic check option, VIP Preferred e-Check, which eliminates the need
for paper checks as part of the VIP Preferred suite of products.

Check verification and recovery services are similar to those provided in the check guarantee service, except
that this service does not guarantee payment of the verified checks. This service provides a low-cost, loss-
reduction solution for merchants wishing to quickly measure a customer’s check presentment worthiness at the
point of sale, while not having to incur the additional expense of check guarantee services. We derive revenue for
these services primarily from the service fees collected from delinquent check writers, fees charged to merchants
based on a transaction rate per verified check, and fees charged to merchants for specialized services, such as
electronic re-deposits of dishonored checks.

Our terminal management offering provides a variety of products and services relating to electronic
transaction processing equipment, such as terminal programming and deployment, set-up and telephone training,
maintenance and equipment replacement, warehousing and inventory control, customer service and technical
support, customized reporting, and conversions. We provide these services directly to our own portfolio of
merchants, as well as, indirectly to merchants on behalf of our financial institution and independent sales

organization customers. We derive revenue from equipment sales and rentals, programming and deployment
fees, and repairs and maintenance services.

Funds Transfer

Cur electronic funds transfer product and service offerings include a wide variety of services such as
financial EDI, account balance reporting, management information and deposit reporting. These products and
services provide financial, management and operational data to financial institutions, corporations and
government agencies worldwide and allow these organizations to exchange the information with financial
institutions and other service providers. We also provide EDI tax filing and Internet tax payment services that
allow financial institutions and government agencies to offer corporate taxpayers a secure and convenient method
of paying taxes electronically. Tax payment security is handled through both SSL encryption/decryption and
multi-level password access and operates through a web site that serves as the portal for securely receiving tax
information and delivering the transaction for payment.

Total revenues from our merchant service and funds transfer customers are as follows:

2002 2001 20006
(in thousands)
MeETChant SEIVICES . . . vt v it et e e e e e e $ 449,144 $ 334,979 $ 318,262
Fundstransfer . .. ... . 13,682 18,216 21,771

$ 462,826 § 353,195 §$ 340,033

Sales and Marketing

We market our products and services to the electronic commerce markets through a variety of distinct sales
channels that include a large, dedicated sales force, independent sales organizations, independent sales
representatives, an internal telesales group, alliance bank relationships, and financial institutions. In addition to
receiving referrals from approximately 1,800 bank branch locations in Canada, we have associations with over
200 organizations and approximately 1,000 VARs in the United States that provide sales leads. We market our
products and services throughout the United States, Canada and Europe. For a discussion of revenues in the
United States, Canada and Europe for the fiscal years ended May 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, see Note 2 in the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

We have two basic business models we use to market our products and services. In one model, which we
refer to as “direct” merchant services, we have a salaried and commissioned sales force and independent sales
organizations, or ISOs, that sell our end-to-end services directly to merchants. In the other model, which we refer
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to as “indirect” merchant services, we provide unbundled products and services primarily to financial institutions
that in turn resell to their merchants. After providing for the full year impact of acquisitions, approximately 80%
of our merchant services revenue is direct and the remaining 20% is indirect.

Additionally, we market directly to customers through print advertising and direct mail efforts. We
participate in major industry tradeshow and publicity events and actively employ various public relations
campaigns. We intend for this strategy to utilize the lowest delivery cost system available to successfully acquire
target customers.

Employees

As of June 30, 2002, we and our subsidiaries had approximately 1,800 employees. Many of our employees
are highly skilled in technical areas specific to electronic transaction processing, and we believe that our current
and future operations depend substantially on retaining these employees.

Competition

We operate in the electronic transaction processing industry. Our primary competitors in this industry
include other independent processors, as well as certain major national and regional financial institutions and
independent sales organizations. Certain of these companies are privately held, and the majority of those that are
publicly held do not release the information necessary to precisely quantify our relative competitive position.
Based on industry publications such as The Nilson Report, management believes that we are one of the largest
electronic transaction processors in the world. According to that report, one of our competitors, First Data
Corporation and its affiliates, is the largest electronic transaction processor in the United States. Our primary
competitor in Canada is Moneris Solutions, which we believe has a slightly larger share of the Canadian
electronic transaction market than we do. Moneris Solutions is a joint investment of the Royal Bank of Canada
and the Bank of Montreal.

The most significant competitive factors related to our product and services include: quality, value-added
features, functionality, price, reliability, the breadth and effectiveness of our distribution channel, customer
service, and the manner in which we deliver our services. These competitive factors will continue to change as
new distribution channels and alternative payment solutions are developed by our competitors and us.

Our primary strategy to distinguish ourselves from our competitors focuses on offering a variety of
electronic transaction processing payment solutions to our customers. These enhanced services involve vertical
market and sophisticated reporting features that add value to the information obtained from our electronic
transaction processing databases. We believe that our knowledge of these specific markets, the size and
effectiveness of our dedicated sales force, and our ability to offer specific, integrated solutions to our customers,
including hardware, software, processing, and network facilities, and our flexibility in packaging these products
are positive factors that enhance our competitive position.

Banking Regulations

CIBC owns 26.5% of our common stock outstanding. As a result of CIBC’s equity interest in our company,
we are considered a subsidiary of CIBC for U.S. bank regulatory purposes. CIBC is a Canadian Bank with
operations in the United States. Accordingly, CIBC is regulated in the U.S. as a foreign bank and, as a result, is
subject to most of the same limitations as a U.S. bank holding company under provisions of the Bank Holding
Company Act. In being considered a subsidiary of CIBC, we are subject to those same regulations. We are also
subject to examination by the Federal Reserve Board. As a general matter, we are able to operate our merchant
services and funds transfer businesses as we have historically, but our ability to expand into unrelated businesses
may be limited unless they are activities that the Bank Holding Company Act allows or the Federal Reserve
Board approves.
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Bank holding companies may engage in the business of banking, managing and controlling banks, and in
other activities so closely related to managing and controlling banks as to be a proper incident thereto. The
Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, enacted in 1999, amended the Bank Holding Company Act to allow greater
operational flexibility for bank holding companies that are well-capitalized, well-managed and meet certain other
conditions. Such companies are referred to as “financial holding companies.” Financial holding companies may
engage in activities that are financial in nature, or that are incidental or complimentary to financial activities. The
legislation defines securities and insurance activities as being permissible financial activities, allows certain
merchant banking activities, and establishes a procedure for the Federal Reserve Board, together with the U.S.
Treasury Department, to announce additional permissible activities.

As a foreign bank, CIBC may qualify for financial holding company status and has done so. If a financial
holding company falls out of compliance with the well-managed, well-capitalized, community reinvestment
requirements, it must enter into an agreement with the Federal Reserve to rectify the situation. The Federal
Reserve may refuse to allow the financial holding company, which would include its subsidiaries, to engage in

new “financial” activities; may require it to cease current “financial” activities; and may require it to divest its
bank.

The merchant services and funds transfer businesses that we conduct are permissible activities for bank
holding companies (as well as financial holding companies) under U.S. law, and we do not expect the limitations
described above to adversely affect our current operations. It is possible, however, that these restrictions might
limit our ability to enter other businesses that we may wish to engage in at some time in the future. It is also
possible that these laws may be amended in the future, or new laws or regulations adopted, that adversely affect
our ability to engage in our current or additional businesses.

Additionally, CIBC is subject to the Bank Act (Canada), which, among other things, limits the types of
business which CIBC may conduct, directly or indirectly, and the types of investments which CIBC may make.
CIBC’s shareholding in our company is currently permitted under the Bank Act. The Bank Act, except as we have
discussed, does not otherwise apply to us.

Under the Bank Act, CIBC is permitted to continue to hold its interest in us, as long as the business
undertaken by us is consistent with the applicable provisions of the Bank Act. If we undertake businesses
inconsistent with the businesses in which CIBC is permitted to hold an interest, CIBC may be required, pursuant
to the provisions of the Bank Act, to dispose of its shares prior to the expiration of the restrictions on re-sale that
we have negotiated with CIBC.

We have agreed with CIBC, in effect, that we will not undertake any business inconsistent with the
applicable provisions of the Bank Act. We do not anticipate that compliance with this undertaking will affect, in
any material way, our ability to carry on the merchant services and funds transfer businesses. Cur ability to
expand into other businesses will be governed by the undertaking and the applicable provisions of Canadian
banking legislation at the relevant time. There is no assurance that subsequent amendments to the Bank Act will
not adversely affect our ability to carry on our business in some respects.

ITEM 2—PROPERTIES

Our corporate headquarters are located at Four Corporate Square in Atlanta, Georgia, where we lease from
NDC a five-story, 85,000 square foot building. This lease expires in 2004 unless extended prior to that time. In
the first quarter of fiscal 2002, in order to support additional growth and consolidation efforts, we moved our
merchant acquiring business back-office and customer service operation from a 35,000 square foot facility in
Hanover, Maryland to an 85,000 square foot facility that we lease in Owings Mills, Maryland. In addition, we
lease a total of 28 other facilities in the United States, one in Peterborough, United Kingdom, two in Toronto,
Canada, and eight others throughout Canada. We are currently consolidating the two Toronto facilities into a
44,000 square foot facility in Toronto, to support growth and the integration efforts of existing Canadian
acquisitions. We own or lease a variety of computers and other related equipment for our operational needs. We
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continue to upgrade and expand our computers and related equipment in order to increase efficiency, enhance
reliability, and provide the necessary base for business expansion.

We believe that all of our facilities and equipment are suitable and adequate for our business as presently
conducted.

ITEM 3—LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are party to a number of claims and lawsuits incidental to the normal course of our business. In our
opinion, the ultimate outcome of such matters, in the aggregate, will not have a material adverse impact on our
financial position, liquidity or results of operations.

ITEM 4—SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of our shareholders during our fourth quarter ended May 31, 2002.

PART II

ITEM 5—MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS

Our common stock began trading on the New York Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol “GPN” on
February 1, 2001. The table set forth below provides the high and low sales prices and dividends paid per share
of our common stock for the four quarters during fiscal 2002 and the third and fourth quarter during fiscal 2001.
We expect to continue to pay our shareholders a dividend per share in amount comparable to that indicated in the
table and to continue to do so on a quarterly basis. However, any future determination to pay cash dividends will
be at the discretion of our board of directors and will depend upon our results of operations, financial condition,
capital requirements and such other factors as the board of directors deems relevant.

Dividend
High Low Per Share
Fiscal 2002
First QUArter .. .. oottt e e e e $ 3555 $ 2605 $0.04
Second QUarter . ... e e 35.65 23.05 0.04
Third QUarter ... ... e 36.00 30.35 0.04
Fourth Quarter ... ... e e 38.42 30.95 0.04
Fiscal 2001
Third QUAIEr .. ..ot e e e $ 2090 $ 1803 $ —
Fourth Quarter . ... i e 26.50 16.65 0.04

The number of shareholders of record of our common stock as of August 15, 2002 was 2,981.

ITEM 6—SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

You should read the selected financial data set forth below in conjunction with “Item 7: Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and “Item 8: Financial Statements
and Supplementary Data” included elsewhere in this annual report. The income statement data for each of the
three fiscal years ended May 31, 2002, and the balance sheet data as of May 31, 2002 and 2001 are derived from
the audited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this annual report. The balance sheet data as
of May 31, 2000 was derived from audited consolidated financial statements included in our Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended May 31, 2001. The income statement data for each of the two fiscal years ended May 31, 1999
and the balance sheet data as of May 31, 1999 are derived from the audited consolidated financial statements
included in our Registration Statement on Form 10 filed with the SEC on September 8, 2000, as subsequently
amended. The balance sheet data as of May 31, 1998 is derived from the unaudited consolidated financial
statements that have been prepared by management.
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For Year Ended May 31,
(In thousands, except per share data)
2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Income statement datas:
Revenue ...........c.ovon. .. $ 462,826 $ 353,195 $ 340,033 $ 330,051 $ 291,547
Operating income . ............. 71418 (1) 53,046(1) 63,212 76,675 57,974
Income before cumulative effect of
change in accounting
principle ........ ... ... ..., 39,839 23,668 33,047 41,336 31,077
Cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle, net of
$8,614 income tax benefit .. ... (15,999)(2) — — — —
Netincome ................... $ 23,840 $ 23,668 $ 33,047 $ 41,336 $ 31,077
Per share data:
Basic earnings per share:
Income before cumulative effect
of a change in accounting
principle ................. $ 1.09 $ 0.83 $ 1.24 $ 1.53 $ 1.21
Cumulative effect of accounting
change ................... (0.44) — — — —
Netincome ................. $ 0.65 § 0.83(3) $ 1.243) $ 1.533) § 1.21(3)
Diluted earnings per share:
Income before cumulative effect
of a change in accounting
principle ................. $ 1.05  $ 082 % — $ — $ —
Cumulative effect of accounting
change................ ... (042) — — — —
Netincome ................. $ 0.63 $ 0.82 $ — H 3 — @4 $ — @@
Dividends pershare ............ $ 016 $ 0045 8 — (&) $ — 3 3 — (5
Balance sheet data:
Totalassets ................... $ 431,418 $ 458,604 $ 287,946 $ 289,667 $ 276,753
Lineofcredit ................. 22,000 73,000 — — —
DuetoNDC .................. — — 96,125 89,375 109,375
Obligations under capital leases . . . 7,310 4,713 7,232 15,774 6,616
Total shareholder’s equity ....... 296,288 271,022 119,795 106,923 83,806

(1) Includes restructuring and other charges of $10,993 and $4,882 in fiscal 2002 and 2001, respectively. See

Note 12 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

{2) See Note 2 of the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—Goodwill and Other intangible assets.”

(3) Using the ratio of 0.8 of a share of Global Payments common stock for each share of NDC common stock
held on January 31, 2001, or the Distribution Date, the date of NDC’s spin-off of its eCommerce business
into Global Payments. Weighted average shares outstanding are computed by applying the distribution ratio
to the historical NDC weighted average shares outstanding for all periods presented.

(4) Diluted earnings per share is not presented in the selected financial data for historical periods prior to fiscal
2001 as Global Payments stock options did not exist prior to the Distribution Date. Refer to Note 2 of our

“Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—FEarnings per share.”

(5) Dividends were first paid in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001, after the Distribution Date.
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ITEM 7—MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis contains forward-looking statements about our plans and expectations
of what may happen in the future. Forward-looking statements are based on a number of assumptions and
estimates that are inherently subject to significant risks and uncertainties, and our results could differ materially
from the results anticipated by our forward-looking statements as a result of many known and unknown factors,
including but not limited to those discussed in Exhibit 99.1 to this report. See also “Special Cautionary Notice
Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” at the beginning of “Item 1. Business.”

You should read the following discussion and analysis in conjunction with “Item 6: Selected Financial
Data” and “Item 8: Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” appearing elsewhere in this report.

General

We are primarily a mid-market merchant acquirer in the United States, and the largest, publicly traded
independent VISA and MasterCard acquirer in Canada. We provide a wide range of end-to-end electronic
transaction processing solutions to merchants, corporations, financial institutions and government agencies. Our
products and services are marketed through a variety of distinct sales channels that include a large, dedicated
direct sales force, independent sales organizations, independent sales representatives, an internal telesales group,
trade associations, alliance bank relationships and financial institutions.

We operate in one business segment, electronic transaction processing, and provide products and services
through our merchant services and funds transfer offerings. Approximately 97% of our current revenue base is
from merchant services offerings. The remaining 3% of our total revenue is from our funds transfer service
offerings.

Merchant services include credit and debit card transaction processing, business-to-business purchase card
transaction processing, check guarantee, check verification and recovery, and terminal management services. We
have two basic business models. In one model, which we refer to as “direct” merchant services, we have a
salaried and commissioned sales force and independent sales organizations, or ISOs, that sell our end-to-end
services directly to merchants. In the other model, which we refer to as “indirect” merchant services, we provide
unbundled products and services primarily to financial institutions that in turn resell to their merchants. After
providing for the full year impact of acquisitions, approximately 80% of our merchant services revenue is direct
and the remaining 20% is indirect.

In fiscal 2002 and 2001, we made several adjustments to our results, as reported, according to generally
accepted accounting principles, or GAAP, to disclose pro forma or “normalized” results of operation. The
normalized results exclude the impact of divested businesses, other non-recurring items, such as restructuring and
other charges, a non-cash loss on investment, and certain pro forma costs assuming the spin-off from NDC
occurred on June 1, 1999. We believe the normalized results of operations more clearly reflect comparative
operating performance because current and prior year GAAP results include the certain one-time items listed
above. The following discussion and analysis will address both GAAP reported results and normalized results of
operations for the comparison of the fiscal year ended May 31, 2002 and 2001 and fiscal year ended May 31,
2001 and 2000.

Components of Income Statement

We derive our revenues from three primary sources: charges based on volumes and fees for merchant
services; charges based on transaction quantity; and equipment sales, leases and service fees. Revenues generated
by these areas depend upon a number of factors, such as demand for and price of our services, the technological
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competitiveness of our product offerings, our reputation for providing timely and reliable service, competition
within our industry, and general economic conditions.

Cost of service consists primarily of: the cost of network telecommunications capability; transaction
processing systems; personnel who develop and maintain applications, operate computer networks and provide
customer support; depreciation and occupancy costs associated with the facilities performing these functions; and
provisions for operating losses.

Sales, general and administrative expenses consist primarily of salaries, wages and related expenses paid to
sales personnel; non-revenue producing customer support functions and administrative employees and
management; commissions to independent contractors and ISOs; advertising costs; other selling expenses;
employee training costs; and occupancy of leased space directly related to these functions.

Other income and expense primarily consists of: minority interest in earnings, interest income and expense
and other miscellaneous items of income and expense.

Cur earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, or EBITDA, is defined as operating
income plus depreciation and amortization. This statistic and its results as a percentage of revenue may not be
comparable to similarly titled measures reported by other companies. EBITDA is not a measurement of financial
performance under GAAP and is not presented as a substitute for net income or cash flow from operating,
investing or financing activities determined in accordance with GAAP. However, we believe this statistic is a
relevant measurement and provides comparable cash earnings measure, excluding the impact of the amortization
of acquired intangibles, timing differences associated with merchant processing and working capital funding and
the related depreciation charges.

Results of Operations
Fiscal Year Ended May 31, 2002 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended May 31, 2001

In fiscal 2002, revenue increased $109.6 million or 31% to $462.8 million from $353.2 million in fiscal
2001. The increase in revenue was primarily due to the CIBC, Imperial Bank, and National Bank portfolio
acquisitions as well as continued growth in our direct merchant services business. Qur ISO sales channel also
continues to be a strong contributor to revenue, while revenues from our indirect merchant services and funds
transfer continued to decline as forecasted. The growth in direct merchant card services revenue is due primarily
to our portfolio acquisitions, the addition of new merchant relationships, including those added through our ISO
relationships, and increased usage of credit cards and debit cards within our existing merchant customers. The
declines in revenue from indirect merchant services are primarily a result of the consolidating financial
institution market. Funds transfer is a mature market and although we continue to service our existing customers
we do not intend to invest in this area.

In fiscal 2001, we recorded approximately $13.9 million in non-recurring revenue. We divested our card
issuing business for cash consideration approximately equal to its net book value. The revenue from the card
issuing business in fiscal 2001 was $2.9 million. We excluded the card issuing business from our previously
reported normalized fiscal 2001 revenue of $350.3 million. In addition, we had $11.0 million of other non-
recurring revenue during fiscal 2001. We decided to significantly reduce our bulk terminal equipment sale
business during the first quarter of fiscal 2002, which did not produce meaningful operating income. The revenue
from the bulk terminal business decreased by $4.0 million to $2.4 million in fiscal 2002 from $6.4 million in
fiscal 2001. Further, we provided processing services during fiscal 2001 to CIBC and Imperial Bank for which,
after the related portfolio acquisitions, we were no longer able to record as revenue externally. The revenue
recorded during fiscal 2001 from these institutions was approximately $1.3 million. We also recorded $5.7
million in non-recurring revenue from a limited number of customers, of which approximately $2.5 million
related to non-recurring chargeback services and $3.2 million related to our non-core domestic funds transfer
business.
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Cost of service increased by $59.7 million or 31% from $192.4 million in fiscal 2001 to $252.1 million in
fiscal 2002. As a percentage of revenue, cost of service remained unchanged from 54.5% in both fiscal 2002 and
2001. The increase in cost of service expenses is attributable to the inclusion of costs associated with CIBC’s and
Imperial Bank’s merchant acquiring businesses, which we acquired in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001, and
National Bank’s merchant acquiring business, which we acquired in the second quarter of fiscal 2002.

On July 20, 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statements of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS No. 142”). SFAS No. 142 eliminates the
amortization of goodwill and certain other intangible assets and requires that goodwill be evaluated for
impairment by applying a fair value-based test. We adopted this new standard in the first quarter of fiscal 2002.
In accordance with SFAS No. 142, we discontinued the amortization of goodwill and certain intangible assets
that were determined to have an indefinite life. The cost of service increases were partially offset by a decrease
associated with the adoption of SFAS No. 142, which lowered amortization expense by $7.4 million in fiscal
2002, and a decrease of $2.3 million associated with the divested card issuing business in fiscal 2001.

In fiscal 2001, we recorded a $3.0 million charge associated with a change in our operating guidelines
related to our aged chargeback receivables in the merchant settlement function. Prior to the change in guidelines,
we carried a disputed merchant chargeback receivable until resolution. Under our current guidelines, generally
within 25 days of receiving a chargeback notice from VISA or MasterCard, we complete our review of the matter
and either charge the merchant or the issuing bank, pending final disposition if the chargeback remains disputed
by either party. Therefore, we no longer hold the receivable exposure on these pending chargebacks, but continue
to pursue a favorable resolution and collections on behalf of our merchants. This change recognized that some
chargebacks under review in fiscal 2001 may not be collectible, therefore we provided for a $3.0 million non-
recurring charge in fiscal 2001, resulting in an increase in our provision for operating losses to $8.4 million. In
fiscal 2002, our provision for operating losses was $9.8 million. The increase in operating losses in fiscal 2002 is
a result of the increase in credit and debit card volumes processed and losses associated with merchant fraud.

Sales, general and administrative expenses increased $25.4 million or 25% to $128.3 million in fiscal 2002
from $102.9 million in fiscal 2001. As a percentage of revenue, these expenses decreased to 27.7% at May 31,
2002 compared to 29.1% at May 31, 2001. The increase in sales, general and administrative expenses was due to
the higher level of sales infrastructure, personnel and related costs to grow revenue, the inclusion of merchant
acquiring portfolio acquisitions, growth in residual payments to ISOs, and the CIBC and Imperial Bank merchant
acquiring portfolio back-end conversion costs, offset by a decrease of $0.7 million associated with the divested
card issuing business in fiscal 2001. The decrease in sales, general and administrative expenses as a percentage
of revenue is due to a reduction of administrative costs related to the consolidation of business locations and
acquisition integrations.

During fiscal 2002, we incurred restructuring and other charges of $11.0 million. During the fourth quarter
of fiscal 2002, we completed plans for the closing of four locations including associated management and staff
reductions. Of the $11.0 million in charges, $1.5 million related to facility closing costs; $6.7 million related to
severance and related costs; and $2.8 million related to other costs. During fiscal 2001, we continued our efforts
to streamline operations through office consolidations. Accordingly, in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001, we
incurred a $4.9 million restructuring charge related to office consolidations and severance payments to
terminated employees. See Note 12 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements appearing elsewhere in
this report for more details on these restructuring and other charges incurred in both fiscal years.

Operating income increased $18.4 million or 35% to $71.4 million in fiscal 2002 from $53.0 million in
fiscal 2001. Operating income, excluding the impact of restructuring and other charges in the amount of $11.0
million, results in normalized operating income of $82.4 million in fiscal 2002. Normalized operating income for
fiscal 2001 is $60.7 million. This excludes $4.9 million in restructuring and other charges, $3.0 million due to the
change in operating guidelines related to aged chargebacks and $0.1 million in losses from the divested card
issuing business, but includes $0.3 million of additional sales, general and administrative expenses as if we were
a public company as of June I, 2000. Our normalized operating income increased $21.7 million or 36%. Our
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normalized operating income margin, as a percentage of normalized revenue, increased to 17.8% in fiscal 2002
compared to 17.3% in fiscal 2001.

The increase in normalized operating income and normalized operating income margin is attributable to
synergies from our acquisition integration efforts, improvement due to the I[SO sales channel growth and the
reduction of administrative costs related to the consolidation of business locations. However, the improvements
are partially offset by the impact of the continued declines in our indirect merchant services and funds transfer
businesses, discussed above.

Cther income and expense decreased by $7.6 million or 52% to $7.0 million for fiscal 2002 from $14.6
million for fiscal 2001. Excluding a one-time charge of $5.0 million in fiscal 2001 associated with a non-cash
loss on an investment, but including $0.8 million in additional fiscal 2001 interest expense as a result of the
differences in the interest rate under the terms of our line of credit versus the amounts historically allocated from
NDC, normalized other income and expense decreased $3.4 million to $7.0 million for fiscal 2002 from $10.4
million for fiscal 2001. The decrease in normalized other income and expense is due to lower variable interest
rates on our credit facilities in fiscal 2002 and the buyout of the MasterCard minority interest in Global Payment
Systems LLC effective June 1, 2001, Also, the decrease in outstanding balances on the credit facilities resulted in
lower interest expense in fiscal 2002.

Income before a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle increased $16.1 million or 68% to
$39.8 million in fiscal 2002 from $23.7 million in fiscal 2001. Excluding the after-tax effects from the one-time
adjustments that reconcile GAAP to normalized results discussed above, normalized income before the
cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, increased $15.7 million or 51% to $46.6 million in fiscal
2002 from $30.9 million in fiscal 2001. The increase in normalized income is due to improvements in income
before tax, discussed above, and in part to a decrease in our effective tax rate from 38.5% during fiscal 2001 to
38.2% during fiscal 2002. In fiscal 2003, we expect the effective tax rate to be 37.4%. These decreases in the tax
rate are due in part to tax credits and the adoption of SFAS No. 142, discussed in Notes 2 and 7 to the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

The increase in earnings per share before the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle is due to
an increase in income and was impacted by the additional shares outstanding as a result of the stock issued in
consideration of the purchase of CIBC’s merchant acquiring portfolio. Normalized diluted earnings per share for
fiscal 2002 is $1.23. This excludes the earnings per share impact of the change in accounting principle, $(0.42);
and the earnings per share impact of the restructuring and other charge, $(0.18), from reported diluted earnings
per share of $0.63. Normalized diluted earnings per share increased $0.17 or 16% to $1.23 in fiscal 2002 from
$1.06 in fiscal 2001, which excludes the one-time adjustments described above in fiscal 2002 and 2001.

The Company recorded a change in accounting principle of $16.0 million, net of tax, in fiscal 2002. At June
1, 2001, we had an indefinite life intangible asset, a trademark, with a carrying value of $24.6 million. The
trademark was acquired on April 1, 1996 with the purchase of 92.5% ownership interest in MasterCard
International’s Merchant Automated Point-of-Sale Program, or MAPP. The value of the trademark related to the
use of the MAPP name and logo. In connection with the spin-off from NDC, we launched a significant
rebranding effort under the Global Payments Inc. name and logo. In addition, effective June 1, 2001, we
purchased MasterCard’s remaining minority interest, ending all existing marketing alliances with MasterCard
and began conducting a study related to the future use of the trademark. In fiscal 2002, we completed an
appraisal with an independent valuation firm of the fair value of the trademark as of June 1, 2001, the
implementation date of SEAS No. 142. Based on the lack of continuing use of the MAPP trademark as of June 1,
2001, the fair value of the trademark was determined to be zero. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, the $24.6
million ($16.0 million, net of tax) was written off as of June 1, 2001 and was recorded as a cumulative effect of a
change in accounting principle.

Fiscal Year Ended May 31, 2001 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended May 31, 2000

Qur revenue increased $13.2 million, or 4%, to $353.2 million in fiscal 2001 from $340.0 million in fiscal
2000. This increase was primarily due to the inclusion of revenues from CIBC’s merchant acquiring business
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acquired in March 2001. The increase from the acquisition was partially offset by a decrease of $10.0 million
associated with business divestitures during fiscal 2001 and 2000 and a non-recurring product and service mix
change of $2.8 miilion in fiscal 2000.

In fiscal 2001, we divested our card issuing business for cash consideration approximately equal to its net
book value. Revenues associated with this business were $2.9 million in fiscal 2001 and $8.8 million in fiscal
2000. In addition, in fiscal 2000, we experienced a non-recurring product and service mix change in our terminal
business and divested a small product offering. Revenues in fiscal 2000 associated with the change in the
terminal business and the product offering were $2.8 million and $1.2 million respectively.

Excluding the revenue from these divested businesses and non-recurring items, normalized revenue was
$350.3 million in fiscal 2001 compared to $327.2 million in fiscal 2000, an increase of $23.1 million or 7%. This
increase was due to the inclusion of revenues from CIBC’s merchant acquiring business and strong volume and
transaction growth in our direct merchant acquiring business. The increase in revenue in our direct merchant
services in fiscal 2001 was offset by declines in revenues from our indirect merchant services and funds transfer
product offerings in fiscal 2001 compared to fiscal 2000.

Cost of service increased $10.9 million or 6% from $181.5 million in fiscal 2000 to $192.4 miliion in fiscal
2001. Excluding the charges for the divested businesses in fiscal 2001 and fiscal 2000 and a charge of
$1.7 million associated with the change in the terminal business in fiscal 2000, normalized cost of service was
$187.1 million for fiscal 2001 compared to $174.0 million in fiscal 2000, an increase of $13.1 million or 8%.
This increase in normalized cost of service is primarily attributed to the inclusion of costs associated with
CIBC’s merchant acquiring business in our normalized results for fiscal 2001. As a percentage of normalized
revenue, normalized cost of service was 53% in both fiscal 2001 and 2000.

Sales, general and administrative expenses increased $7.6 million or 8%, from $95.3 million in fiscal 2000
to $102.9 million in fiscal 2001. Excluding expenses relating to divested businesses and adding expenses that
would have been incurred if the spin-off from NDC had occurred on June 1, 1999, normalized sales, general and
administrative expenses were $102.5 million in fiscal 2001 compared to $94.0 million in fiscal 2000, an increase
of $8.5 million or 9%. As a percentage of normalized revenue, these normalized expenses increased to 29.3% in
fiscal 2001 compared to 28.7% in fiscal 2000. These increases were primarily due to the relatively higher level of
investments by us in infrastructure, personnel, and direct sales channels after the spin-off from NDC, and due to
increased expenses associated with the inclusion of CIBC’s merchant acquiring business.

Operating income decreased $10.2 million, or 16%, to $53.0 million in fiscal 2001 from $63.2 million in
fiscal 2000. As a percentage of revenue, our operating income margin decreased to 15.0% in fiscal 2001 from
18.6% in fiscal 2000. These decreases are due primarily to the one-time adjustments described above, and
generally, a higher level of investment by us after the spin-off from NDC in infrastructure, personnel, and our
direct sales channels.

Normalized operating income increased $1.5 million, or 3%, to $60.7 million in fiscal 2001 from
$59.2 million in fiscal 2000. As a percentage of normalized revenue, our normalized operating margin was
17.3% in fiscal 2001 compared to 18.1% for 2000.

Normalized basic earnings per share decreased $0.05, or 4%, to $1.08 for fiscal 2001 from $1.13 in fiscal
2000. This decrease is attributed to the increase in weighted-average shares outstanding, primarily due to the
shares issued in consideration of the acquisition of CIBC’s merchant acquiring business partially offset by an
increase in normalized net income. A total of 9.8 million shares were issued to CIBC, however only 1.9 million
were outstanding for earnings per share calculations due to the partial period that commenced with the close of
the acquisition on March 20, 2001.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash flow generated from operations provides us with a significant source of liquidity to meet our needs. At
May 31, 2002, we had cash and cash equivalents totaling $19.2 million. Net cash provided by operating activities
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increased $81.9 million, or 104%, to $160.5 million for fiscal 2002 from $78.6 million for fiscal 2001. This
strong cash flow is due to the growth in our domestic direct merchant services business, recent acquisitions, and
acceleration in the collection of Canadian VISA net merchant processing receivables. The acceleration in the
collection of receivables primarily relates to the CIBC merchant portfolio back-end conversion, which took place
on October 26, 2001, and is reflected on the balance sheet in the net merchant processing receivable and payable
line items. The merchant processing receivable of $76.7 million in the prior year primarily related o a net
receivable from VISA which CIBC managed during the pre-conversion transition period, and, as a result, we did
not receive any cash flow benefit. Since the conversion, Global Payments has been able to reduce this amount by
$30.0 million which was realized in the fiscal second quarter ending November 30, 2001. The remaining balance
of the decline in the account reflects net merchant funding timing differences.

Net cash used in investing activities increased $54.1 million to $87.5 million for fiscal 2002 from
$33.4 million for fiscal 2001. This increase is primarily due to increased business development activities in fiscal
2002, including the National Bank merchant portfolio acquisition and the buyout of the MasterCard International
Corporation minority interest in Global Payment Systems LLC. The $8.8 million increase in capital expenditures
is related to office consolidation efforts and infrastructure to support future growth and acquisition integrations.
In fiscal 2003, we expect approximately $15 million to $25 million in total capital spending, primarily related to
continued office consolidations, acquisition integrations, systems infrastructure and product development.

Net cash used in financing activities increased $18.0 million to $59.8 million for fiscal 2002 from
$41.8 million for fiscal 2001. During fiscal 2002, we borrowed approximately $62 million on our line of credit to
finance the National Bank merchant portfolio acquisition and the MasterCard minority interest buyout. Together
with the amount outstanding at May 31, 2001, ($73.0 million), we repaid $113 million for a net repayment of
$51 million during the fiscal year ended May 31, 2002. We periodically borrow and repay amounts on our lines
of credit, reflecting the funding of timing differences between merchant funding and receipts from card
associations and the debit networks. As of May 31, 2002, $22.0 million is outstanding on our revolving line of
credit.

As a result of our spin-off from NDC, we were allocated $96.1 million at June 1, 2000, an amount that
reflected our share of NDC’s pre-distribution debt used to establish our initial capitalization. In addition, we were
charged $10.1 million for spin-off costs paid by NDC. As a result, we made net payments to NDC in fiscal 2001
of $106.2 million. We funded approximately $37 million of this repayment using cash flow provided by
operations and drew $59 million on our line of credit to fund the balance of the cash dividend payment to NDC
on January 31, 2001. Prior to May 31, 2001, we repaid $6.0 million of the amount drawn on our line of credit. In
addition, we used $20 million from our line of credit in May 2001 to finance our Imperial Bank merchant
portfolio acquisition.

We believe that our current level of cash and borrowing capacity under our committed lines of credit
described below, together with future cash flows from operations, are sufficient to meet the needs of our existing
operations and planned requirements for the foreseeable future. We currently do not have any material capital
commitments, other than commitments under capital and operating leases or planned expansions. Over the next
two to three years, we may develop our own hardware and software facilities for the transaction processing, cash
management, file transfer and related communications functions in an effort to improve productivity and reduce
cost of services. If undertaken, this development would further increase our capital expenditures above historical
levels over the next two to three years. In addition to the planned capital projects referred to above, we will
continue the planning and development process necessary to assume the remaining processing services currently
provided to us by National Bank under a transitional service agreement.

We regularly evaluate cash requirements for current operations, commitments, development activities and
acquisitions and we may elect to raise additional funds for these purposes in the future, either through the
issuance of debt, equity or otherwise.

Credit Facilities

We have a commitment for a $125 million revolving line of credit. It was initially used to fund the cash due
to NDC to reflect our share of NDC’s pre-distribution debt used to establish our initial capitalization. This line of
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credit is also available to meet working capital needs and to finance acquisitions. This line has a variable interest
rate based on market rates. The credit agreement contains certain financial and non-financial covenants
customary for financings of this nature. The facility has a three-year term, expiring in January 2004, The full
amount outstanding is due upon demand and therefore, we classify the amount as a current liability. As of
May 31, 2002 and 2001, we had $22 million and $73 million, respectively, outstanding under this facility.

On October 1, 2001, we obtained a commitment for a $25 million revolving credit facility to finance
working capital needs and other general corporate purposes. This line has a variable interest rate based on market
rates. The credit agreement contains certain financial and non-financial covenants customary for financings of
this nature. The facility has a sixteen-month term, expiring in January 2003. There were no amounts outstanding
at May 31, 2002 on this credit facility.

We also have a credit facility from CIBC that provides a line of credit up to $140 million (Canadian
dollars), approximately $91 million U.S. as of May 31, 2002, with an additional overdraft facility available to
cover larger advances during periods of peak usage of credit and debit cards. This line has a variable interest rate
based on market rates. It contains customary covenants and events of default. This line of credit is secured by a
first priority security interest in our accounts receivable from VISA Canada/International, and has been
guaranteed by our subsidiaries. This guarantee is subordinate to our primary credit facility. The CIBC credit
facility had an initial term of 364 days expiring March 19, 2002, and is renewable annually at CIBC’s option. We
renewed the CIBC credit facility for 120 days beginning March 20, 2002 through July 19, 2002. Subsequent to
year-end, we renewed this facility through November 29, 2002. Effective with the renewal of this facility, we
will incur interest costs associated with “same day value” for merchant deposits. “Same day value” has been an
accepted industry practice in Canada for more than ten years. We receive credit for merchants’ sales the morning
after the date of the sales transactions. The merchants” VISA deposits are made the same day and backdated to
the previous day to give the merchants “same day value”. We expect to draw on our facility with CIBC in order
to facilitate the practice of “same day value”. Accordingly, in fiscal 2003, we expect interest and other expense to
approximate the fiscal 2002 amount. There are no amounts outstanding under the CIBC credit facility as of May
31, 2002 and 2001.

Forward-Looking Results of Operations

During fiscal 2003, we intend to continue to focus on growing our domestic and Canadian presence, build
our ISO sales channel, provide customer satisfaction, assess opportunities for profitable acquisition growth,
pursue enhanced products and services for our customers, and leverage our existing business model. Consistent
with this strategy, our expectation for fiscal 2003 revenue is $495 million to $514 million, or 7% to 11% growth,
compared to $463 million in fiscal 2002. QOur expectation for fiscal 2003 diluted earnings per share is $1.35 to
$1.41 or 10% to 15% growth compared to normalized diluted earnings per share of $1.23 in fiscal 2002.
Normalized earnings per share for fiscal 2002 excludes the earnings per share impact of the change in accounting
principle, $(0.42); and excludes the earnings per share impact of the restructuring and other charge, $(0.18), from
reported diluted earnings per share of $0.63. The earnings per share target reflects our expectation of achieving
operating margin of 18.0% to 18.5% in fiscal 2003. Finally, we expect EBITDA between $125.0 million and
$128.0 million for fiscal 2003.

Application of Critical Accounting Policies

In applying the accounting policies that we use to prepare our consolidated financial statements, we
necessarily make accounting estimates that affect our reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses. Some of these accounting estimates require us to make assumptions about matters that are highly
uncertain at the time we make the accounting estimates. We base these assumptions and the resulting estimates
on historical information and other factors that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, and we
evaluate these assumptions and estimates on an ongoing basis. However, in many instances we reasonably could
have used different accounting estimates, and in other instances changes in our accounting estimates are
reasonably likely to occur from period to period, with the result in each case being a material change in the
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financial statement presentation of our financial condition or results of operations. We refer to accounting
estimates of this type as “critical accounting estimates.” Among those critical accounting estimates that we

believe are most important to an understanding of our consolidated financial statements are those that we discuss
below.

Accounting estimates necessarily require subjective determinations about future events and conditions.
Therefore, the following descriptions of critical accounting estimates are forward-looking statements, and actual
results could differ materially from the results anticipated by these forward-looking statements. You should read
the following in conjunction with Note 2 of our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements and “Risk Factors”
contained in Exhibit 99.1 to this annual report.

Reserve for operating losses—We have a reserve for operating losses. We process credit card transactions
for our direct merchants. Our merchant customers have the liability for any charges properly reversed by the
cardholder. In the event, however, that we are not able to collect such amount from the merchants, due to
merchant fraud, insolvency, bankruptcy or another reason, we may be liable for any such reversed charges. We
require cash deposits, guarantees, letters of credit and other types of collateral by certain merchants to minimize
any such contingent liability. We also utilize a number of systems and procedures to manage merchant risk. In
addition, we believe that the diversification of our merchant portfolio among industries and geographic regions
minimizes our risk of loss.

We tecognize revenue based on a percentage of the gross amount charged and have a potential liability for
the full amount of the merchant sales volume. We establish valuation allowances for operational losses based
primarily on historical experience and other relevant factors. Economic downturns or increases in merchant fraud
may result in significant increases in credit related issues. As of May 31, 2002, we have $2.1 million in reserves
for losses associated with operating merchant card processing. Expenses of $9.8 million, $8.4 million and
$3.0 million were recorded for fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, for these losses.

We also have a check guarantee business. Similar to the credit card business, we charge our merchants a
percentage of the gross amount of the check and guarantee payment of the check to the merchant in the event the
check is not honored by the checkwriter’s bank. We have the right to collect the full amount of the check from
the checkwriter but have not historically recovered 100% of the guaranteed checks. We establish a valuation
allowance for this activity based on historical and projected loss experiences. Expenses of $12.4 million,
$9.9 million and $10.1 million were recorded for fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, for these losses. The
estimated check returns and recovery amounts are subject to the risk that actual amounts returned and recovered
in the future may differ significantly from estimates used in calculating the valuation allowance.

Impact of New Accounting Proncuncements

Effective June 1, 2001, we adopted Statements of Financial Accounting Standard No. 133, “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” or SFAS No. 133. SFAS No. 133 requires that a company
recognize derivatives as assets or liabilities on its balance sheet, and also requires that the gain or loss related to
the effective portion of derivatives designated as cash flow hedges be recorded as a component of other

comprehensive income. We have not used any derivative instruments and the adoption of this statement was not
material.

In August 2001, the FASB issued Statements of Financial Accounting Standard No. 143, “Accounting for
Asset Retirement Obligations” or SFAS No. 143. SFAS No. 143 addresses financial accounting and reporting for
obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets and associated asset retirement costs.
SFAS No. 143 applies to legal obligations associated with the retirement of long-lived assets that result from the
acquisition, construction, development and/or normal operation of a long-lived asset. Under SFAS No. 143, these
legal obligations should be recognized in the period in which they are incurred and amortized to expense over the
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life of the asset. This Statement is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after
June 135, 2002 although earlier application is encouraged. This Statement will be adopted effective June 1, 2002.
We have not historically incurred nor do we expect to incur material obligations associated with the retirement of
long-lived assets.

In October 2001, the FASB issued Statements of Financial Accounting Standard No. 144, “Accounting for
the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Asset” or SFAS No. 144. SFAS No. 144 addresses financial
accounting and reporting for the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets. This Statement is effective for
financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001, and interim periods within those
fiscal years, with early application encouraged. This Statement will be adopted effective June 1, 2002. We
believe that the effects of the adoption of SFAS No. 144 will not be material.

ITEM 7A—QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Based on analyses completed and described below, we do not believe that we are exposed to material
market risk from changes in interest rates and/or foreign currency rates.

Interest Rate Risk

Cur $125 million revolving line of credit has a variable interest rate based on the London Interbank Offered
Rates, or LIBOR. Accordingly, we are exposed to the impact of interest rate fluctuations. We have performed an
interest rate sensitivity analysis over the near term with a 10% change in interest rates. A 10% proportionate
increase in interest rates would have resulted in decrease in net income of $0.1 million in both fiscal 2002 and
2001,

Foreign Currency Risk

We generate a percentage of our net income from foreign operations. We are vulnerable to fluctuations in
the Canadian dollar and British pound against the United States dollar and have performed a foreign exchange
sensitivity analysis over the near term with a 10% change in foreign exchange rates. Assuming a 10%
appreciation or depreciation in exchange rate of the British pound and the Canadian dollar would result in net
increase or decrease of $2.7 million in income. This analysis does not take into effect the change in revenue that
may result from such a change in exchange rate.

Derivative Financial Instruments

Historically, we have not entered into derivative financial instruments to mitigate interest rate fluctuation
risk or foreign currency exchange rate risk, as it has not been cost effective. We may use derivative financial
instruments in the future, if we deem it useful in mitigating our exposure to interest rate or foreign currency
exchange rate fluctuations.
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ITEM 8—FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Global Payments Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Global Payments Inc. (a Georgia
corporation) and subsidiaries (“the Company”) as of May 31, 2002, and the related consolidated statements of
income, changes in shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for the year then ended. Our audit also included the
financial statement schedule for the year ended May 31, 2002 listed in the Index at Item 14. These financial
statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Global Payments Inc. and subsidiaries as of May 31, 2002, and the results of their operations and their
cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. Also in our opinion, such financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the
basic consolidated financial statements taken as whole, presents fairly, in all material respects the information set
forth therein.

The consolidated financial statements of Global Payments Inc. as of May 31, 2001 and 2000, and for the
years then ended were audited by other auditors who have ceased operations. As described in Note 7, the fiscal
2001 and 2000 financial statements have been revised to include the transitional disclosures required by
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, which was adopted
by the Company as of June 1, 2001. We performed the following audit procedures with respect to the disclosures
in Note 7 with respect to 2001 and 2000. We (i) agreed the adjustments to reported net income representing
goodwill and trademark amortization expense (including any related tax effects) recognized in those periods to
the Company’s underlying accounting records obtained from management, and (ii) tested the mathematical
accuracy of the reconciliation of reported net income to adjusted net income, and the related per-share amounts.
Additionally, the seventh and eighth paragraphs of Note 3 contain disclosures related to 2001 that were not
previously included in the 2001 notes to the financial statements. The additional disclosures relate to a 2001
acquisition and are required under Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 16. We performed the following
audit procedures with respect to such additional disclosures. We (i) derived the number of shares of common
stock issued from the purchase agreement and, (ii) agreed the value of the shares issued, the amount of the cash
purchase price adjustment, the allocation of the purchase price to various assets and liabilities, and the useful
lives of the resulting intangibles to the Company’s underlying records obtained from management. In our
opinion, the disclosures discussed above are appropriate. However, we were not engaged to audit, review, or
apply any procedures to the 2001 and 2000 financial statements of the Company other than with respect to such
disclosures and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on the 2001 and 2000
financial statements taken as a whole.

As discussed in Note 2 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, in 2002 the Company changed its
method of accounting for goodwill and other intangible assets to conform to Statement of Financial Accounting
Standard No. 142 and recorded a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle on June 1, 2001.

{s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Atlanta, Georgia
July 17, 2002
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To Global Payments Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Global Payments Inc. (a Georgia
corporation) and subsidiaries (“the Company”) as of May 31, 2001 and 2000 and the related consolidated
statements of income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended May 31, 2001. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Global Payments Inc. and subsidiaries as of May 31, 2001 and the results of their operations and their
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended May 31, 2001, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States.

ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP

Atlanta, Georgia
July 17, 2001

EXPLANATORY NOTE REGARDING REPORT OF
INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

On May 2, 2002, Global Payments Inc. decided to no longer engage Arthur Andersen LLP as its
independent public accountants and engaged Deloitte & Touche LLP to serve as its independent public
accountants for the year ending May 31, 2002. More information regarding Global Payments Inc.’s change in
independent public accountants is contained in a current report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 7, 2002.

We could not obtain permission of Arthur Andersen LLP to the inclusion in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K of their Report of Independent Public Accountants above. Accordingly, the Report of Arthur
Andersen LLP above is merely reproduced from Global Payments Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended May 31, 2001 (although the consolidated balance sheet as of May 31, 2000 and the consolidated
statements of income, changes in shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for the year ended May 31, 1999 referred
to in that report are not included herein) and does not include the manual signature of Arthur Andersen LLP. See
“Risk Factors—The conviction of our former independent auditors, Arthur Andersen LLP, on federal obstruction
of justice charges may adversely affect Arthur Andersen LLP’s ability to satisfy any claims arising from the
provision of auditing services to us and may impede our access to the capital markets.”
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
GLOBAL PAYMENTS INC.

(In thousands, except per share data)
Year Ended May 31,
2002 2001 2000

................................................... $ 462,826 $ 353,195 $ 340,033
Operating expenses:

Revenues

uummmm st diiiinii L a

COoSt Of SEIVICE . ..ot e 252,126 192,389 181,479
Sales, general and administrative ... ...... ... ... .00 128,289 102,878 95,342
Restructuringand other ......... ... .. ... .. .. .. . i ... 10,993 4,882 —_
391,408 300,149 276,821
Operating iNCOIME . . .. ..ttt ettt 71,418 53,046 63,212
Other income (expense):
Interest and other InCOME . . . .. oo vttt e 1,600 2,039 796
LOSS O INVESIMENE . . .ottt it et —_ (5,000) —_—
Interest and other eXpense . ...ttt 4,073) 6,171) (6,119)
Minority interest in  arnings ... ... .c.vuet vt (4,482) (5,430) 4,117)

(6,955)  (14,562)  (9,440)

Income before income taxes and cumulative effect of a change in

Lt bl mhu‘um_.umumLuuMﬁmmdm ot baia bbb kil i o ek 1

accounting principle .. ........ . ... 64,463 38,484 53,772
- Provision for inCome taxes .. . ... ouvtn et i i 24,624 14,816 20,725
E Income before cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle .. .. 39,839 23,668 33,047
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, net of $8,614
incometax benefit .. ... .. ... .. .. . .. ... (15,999) — —
NEUINCOME ...\ttt e e et $§ 23840 § 23668 $ 33,047
Basic earnings per share:
Income before cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle .. $ 1.09 $ 083 $ 1.24
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle .............. (0.44) — —
NetinCome . ...t e $ 0.65 $ 0.83 $ 1.24 :
Diluted earnings per share (See Note 2)
f— Income before cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle .. §$ 1.05 § 082 % —
B 5 Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle .............. (0.42) — —
3 g g
é NELIDCOMIE © + v v ee e e $ 063 $ 082 $ — 3
s
- See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
-
3
.
i
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

GLOBAL PAYMENTS INC.
(In thousands, except share data)
May 31, May 31,
2002 2001
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cashand cashequivalents . . ... ... ... i $ 19,194 § 6,103
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $963 and $1,198 in
2002 and 2001, respectively .. ... ..t e 43,576 39,264
Claims receivable, net of allowance for losses of $3,233 and $4,445, in 2002 and
2001, respectively . ... 739 126
Merchant processing receivable . ....... .. ... .. o i — 76,667
Income tax receivable . ... ... .. 3,756 307
Inventory . ... . 2,611 3,216
Deferred InCOME tAXES . . . o ot vttt e e e 6,289 5,118
Prepaid expenses and other current assets ............... i i 3,292 5,697
TOtal CUITENL @SSEIS . ot vttt et e e e e e e e e e e e 79,457 136,498
Property and equipment, Det . ... ... ... 53,643 44,336
GoodWill, et . . 151,712 118,791
Other intangible assets, NEt ... . ... i e 141,308 158,584
O T . . 5,298 395
TOtal ASSetS .. e $ 431,418 $ 458,604
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Line of Credit . ... oottt e $ 22,000 $ 73,000
Merchant processing payable . ......... . . 9,244 8,829
Obligations under capital leases ......... ... .. . 2,599 2,739
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ........... ... ... . 63,162 47916
Total current Habilities . .. .ot it 97.005 132,484
Obligations under capital leases, net of current portion . .......... ... ... .. .. ..., 4711 1,974
Deferred INCOme taXes . . . oottt e e e e 1,788 7,237
Other long-term labilities .. ... ... ... 6,385 7,035
Total HabilitiesS . ...ttt 109,889 148,730
Commitments and contingencies (See Note 14)
Minority interest in equity of subsidiaries ................ i 25,241 38,852
Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, no par value; 5,000,000 shares authorized and none issued ........ — —
Common stock, no par value; 200,000,000 shares authorized and 36,787,255 and
36,477,168 shares issued and outstanding at May 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively ............... B — —
Paid-in capital ... ... ... i e 280,000 272,243
Retained earnings ... ... ...ttt e 20,200 2,217
Deferred compensation . .. .......... ittt s (1,438) (2,357)
Accumulated other comprehensive income ....... ... . e (2,474) (1,081)
Total shareholders’ equity .. ....... .. o i 206,288 271,022
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ......... ... .. ... ... $ 431,418 $ 458,604

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

GLOBAL PAYMENTS INC.

(In thousands)

Year Ended May 31,

2002

2001

2000

Cash flows from operating activities:

NELINCOME . . .o oottt e e e e e e e

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities:

$ 23,840 $ 23,668 § 33,047

Effect of cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, pre tax . .. 24,613 — —
Restructuring and other charges ......... ... ... ... ... ... .. .. ... 4,199 2,197 —
LOSS OI INVESIIMENE .« .\ oottt et ittt et e e et e e — 5,000 —
Depreciation and amortization ............ .. .. i 18,432 10,782 9,688
Amortization of acquired intangibles and goodwill ................... 11,139 10,974 10,340
Deferred income taxes .. ... (6,620) (3,694) 1,786
Minority interest in earnings .. .. .. ... uuuin i 4482 5,430 4,117
Provision for operating lossesand baddebts ....... ... ... ... ... ... 7,515 6,586 1,019
OtheT L (290) (345) 1,500
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of the effects of acquisitions:
Accounts receivable, IEt . ... .. .. (4,422) (6,202) 2,423
Merchant processing, net . .. .. ... i 69,064 7,562 (22,280)
INVENTOTY .t 605 728 2,112)
Prepaid expenses and other assets .. .............vuiiiniinne.n. (947) 1,505 (1,269)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ........................... 8,858 14,423 3,037
Net cash provided by operating activities ........... ... ... .. ..... 160,468 78,614 41,296
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures . ......... ... (22,390) (13,601) 6,002)
Other long term @ssets ... ...ttt e (5,000) — —
Business acquisitions, net of acquired cash .. .............. ... .. ..., (60,154)  (23,350) —
Increase iIn iNVeStMENntS . .. ... ... . . . e — —_ (5,000)
Proceeds from divested business . ....... ... ... o L — 3,502 —
Net cash used in investing activities ...................couruonn... (87,544)  (33,449) (11,002)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net borrowings from (repayments to) NDC . ................. RN — (106,197) 6,750
Net (payments on) proceeds from lineof credit ................. ... .. (51,000) 73,000 —
Net decrease in NDC equity investment . .............uvuenenennn.. — — (21,800)
Principal payments under capital lease arrangements and other long-term
debt (3,279) (3,144)  (9,457)
Stock issued under employees stockplans ......... ... .. oo o 6,734 302 —
Dividends paid ... ... (5.857) (1,459) —
Distributions to minority INterests . ...t eien e, (6,431) (4,330) 4,377)
Net cash used in financing activities ............ .. .. oo, (59,833) (41,828) (28,884)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents ........... ... ... ... ... ........ 13,091 3,337 1,410
Cash and cash equivalents, beginningof year .. ......... ... ... ... ..... 6,103 2,766 1,356
Cash and cash equivalents,endof year .......... ... ... ... ... ... .. ... $ 19,194 $§ 6,103 $ 2,766

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY
GLOBAL PAYMENTS INC.

(In thousands, except per share data)

Accumulated Loss Total

Number of NDC Equity  Paid-in Retained Deferred Other Shareholders’
Shares Investment Capital Earnings Compensation Comprehensive Equity
Balance at May 31,1999 ........... — $ 107,088 $ — § — 5 — % (165 $ 106,923
Comprehensive income
Netincome .. ......cocovvn... 33,047 33,047
Foreign currency translation
adjustment ................ (200) (200)
Total comprehensive income . .. ... _LQ,&IZ
Net transactions with NDC .. ..... (12,718) (12,718)
Net distributions to NDC .. ....... (7,257) (7,257)
Balance at May 31,2000 ........... — 120,160 — — — (365) 119,795
Comprehensive income . .........
NetinCome ........ccovvvennn. 19,992 3,676 23,668
Foreign currency translation
adjustment ................ (716) (716)
Total comprehensive income . .. ... 22,952
Net transactions with NDC . ... ... (3,647) (3,647)
Net distributions to NDC . ........ (2,728) (2,728)
Distribution of common stock .. ... 26,687 (133,777) 137,198 (3,421) —
Stock issued under employee stock
plans ......... ... . oL 25 1,465 1,465
Stock issued for acquisition .. .. ... 9,765 133,580 133,580
Dividends paid ($0.04 per share) . . . (1,459) (1,459)
Amortization of deferred
compensation ................ 1,064 1,064
Balance at May 31,2001 ........... 36,477 — 272,243 2,217 (2,357) (1,081) 271,022
Comprehensive income . .........
Netincome .................. 23,840 23,840
Foreign currency translation
adjustment ................ (1,393) (1,393)
Total comprehensive income . . .. .. 22.447
Stock issued under employee stock
plans ......... ... 310 6,883 (192) 6,691
Tax benefit from exercise of stock
OpLiONS . ... .ot 2,274 2,274
Final adjustment to spin-off
dividend .................... (1,400) (1,400)
Dividends paid ($0.16 per share) . . . (5,857) (5,857)
Amortization of deferred
compensation ................ 1,111 1,111
Balance at May 31,2002 ........... 36,787 § — $ 280,000 $ 20,200 § (1.438) § (2,474) § 296,288

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1—SPIN-OFF AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Global Payments Inc. (“Global Payments” or the “Company”) is an integrated provider of high volume
electronic transaction processing and value-added end-to-end information services and systems to merchants,
multinational corporations, financial institutions, and government agencies. These services are marketed to
customers within the merchant services and the funds transfer businesses through various sales channels.

In December 1999, National Data Corporation, now known as NDCHealth Corporation (“NDC”),
announced its intent to spin-off the NDC eCommerce business segment into a separate publicly traded company
with its own management and Board of Directors (the “Distribution”). This Distribution occurred on January 31,
2001 (the “Daistribution Date™) and was accomplished by forming Global Payments on September 1, 2000,
transferring the stock of the companies which comprised the NDC eCommerce business segment to the Company
and then distributing all of the shares of common stock of Global Payments to NDC’s stockholders. NDC
stockholders received 0.8 share of Global Payments for each NDC share held as of the Distribution Date. After
the Distribution, Global Payments and NDC became two separate public companies.

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its majority-owned
subsidiaries. These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, and present the Company’s

financial position, results of operations, and cash flows. Intercompany transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

Prior to the Distribution Date, the financial statements included the accounts of the subsidiaries of NDC that
comprised its eCommerce business segment. Through the Distribution Date of January 31, 2001, these amounts
were derived from NDC’s historical financial statements. As further described in Note 4, certain corporate and
interest expenses had been allocated to the Company that were not previously allocated to NDC’s eCommerce
business segment. These allocations were based on an estimate of the proportion of corporate expenses related to
the Company, utilizing such factors as revenues, number of employees, number of transactions processed and
other applicable factors. In the opinion of management, these allocations have been made on a reasonable basis.
The costs of these services charged to the Company may not reflect the actual costs the Company would have
incurred for similar services as a stand-alone company.

NOTE 2—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Use of estimates—The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make certain estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements, as well as the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the reported period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue—Card information and transaction processing services revenue are primarily based on a percentage
of transaction value or on a specified amount per transaction, and is recognized as such services are performed.

Revenue for processing services provided directly to merchants is recorded net of interchange fees charged by
credit card associations, which are not controlled by the Company.

Check guarantee services include the process of electronically verifying the check being presented to the
Company’s merchant customer, through an extensive database. The Company generally guarantees the face value
of the verified and guaranteed check to the merchant customer. If a verified and guaranteed check is dishonored,
the Company reimburses the merchant for the check’s guaranteed value, and pursues coliection from the
delinquent checkwriter. The Company has the right to collect the full amount of the check from the checkwriter
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but has historically recovered approximately 50% to 55% of the guaranteed, dishonored checks. The Company
establishes a claims receivable from the delinquent checkwriter for the full amount of the guaranteed check and a
valuation allowance for this activity based on historical and projected loss experience. See “Reserve for
Operating Losses” below.

Revenue for the check guarantee offering is primarily derived from a percentage of the face value of each
guaranteed check. The Company recognizes revenue upon satisfaction of its guarantee obligation to the merchant
customer. The check guarantee offering also earns revenue based on fees collected from delinquent checkwriters
which is recognized when collected, as collectibility is not reasonably assured until that point.

Check verification services are similar to the services provided in the check guarantee offering, except the
Company does not guarantee the verified checks. Revenue for this offering is primarily derived from fees
collected from delinquent checkwriters and is recognized when collected, as collectibility is not reasonably
assured until that point. This offering also earns revenue based on a fixed amount each merchant pays for each
check that is verified. This revenue is recognized when the transaction is processed, since the Company has no
further obligations associated with the transaction.

Terminal management products and services consist of electronic transaction processing terminal sales and
rentals, terminal set-up, telephone training and technical support. Revenue associated with the terminal sale, set-
up and telephone training is considered a single earnings process and is recognized when the set-up and
telephone training is completed, and the merchant customer can begin processing transactions. Terminal rental
revenues are recognized when the service is provided. Revenue associated with technical support is considered
an independent earnings process and is recognized based on either a maintenance agreement, which is recognized
on a straight-line basis over the maintenance contract term, or based on time and materials when the support is
completed.

Cash and cash equivalents—Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and all liquid investments with
an initial maturity of three months or less when purchased.

Inventory—Inventory, which includes computer hardware and peripheral equipment, and electronic point of
sale terminals, is stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined by using the average cost method.

Merchant processing receivable/payable—The merchant processing receivable/payable results from timing
differences in the Company’s settlement process with merchants and card sales processed. These timing
differences are primarily due to the fluctuations in volume and timing of credit and debit card sales volume
funded to merchants and the settlement received from the card associations and debit networks.

Reserve for operating losses—The Company processes credit card transactions for direct merchants. The
Company’s merchant customers have the liability for any charges properly reversed by the cardholder. In the
event, however, that the Company is not able to collect such amount from the merchants, due to merchant fraud,
insolvency, bankruptcy or another reason, the Company may be liable for any such reversed charges. The
Company requires cash deposits, guarantees, letters of credit and other types of collateral by certain merchants to
minimize any such contingent liability. The Company also utilizes a number of systems and procedures to
manage merchant risk.

The Company recognizes revenue based on a percentage of the gross amount charged and has a potential
liability for the full amount of the charge. The Company establishes valuation allowances for operational losses
based primarily on historical experience and other relevant factors. Economic downturns or increases in
merchant fraud may result in significant increases in credit related issues. As of May 31, 2002, $2.1 million has
been reserved for losses associated with operating merchant card processing. The expense associated with the
valuation allowance is included in cost of service in the accompanying consolidated statements of income.
Expenses of $9.8 million, $8.4 million and $3.0 million were recorded for fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively, for these losses.
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The Company also has a check guarantee business. Similar to the credit card business, the Company charges
its merchants a percentage of the gross amount of the check and guarantees payment of the check to the merchant
in the event the check is not honored by the checkwriter’s bank. The Company has the right to collect the full
amount of the check from the checkwriter but has not historically recovered 100% of the guaranteed checks. The
Company establishes a valuation allowance for this activity based on historical and projected loss experiences.
As of May 31, 2002, the Company had a check guarantee reserve of $3.2 million. Expenses of $12.4 million,
$9.9 million and $10.1 million were recorded for fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, for these losses. The
estimated check returns and recovery amounts are subject to the risk that actual amounts returned and recovered
in the future may differ significantly from estimates used in calculating the valuation allowance.

Property and equipment—Property and equipment, including equipment under capital leases, are stated at
cost. Depreciation and amortization are calculated using the straight-line method. Equipment is depreciated over
2 to 5 year lives. Leasehold improvements and property acquired under capital leases are amortized over the
shorter of the useful life of the asset or the term of the lease. The costs of purchased and internally developed
software used to provide services to customers or internal administrative services are capitalized and amortized
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, not to exceed 5 years. Maintenance and repairs are
charged to operations as incurred.

Gooawill and Other intangible assets—On July 20, 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued
Statements of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141, “Business Combinations” (“SFAS No. 141”) and
No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS No. 142”). SFAS No. 141 requires that all business
combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 be accounted for under the purchase method. SFAS No. 142 eliminates
the amortization of goodwill and certain other intangible assets and requires that goodwill be evaluated for
impairment by applying a fair value-based test. Global Payments adopted SFAS No. 142 in the first quarter of
fiscal 2002. In accordance with this new standard, the Company discontinued the amortization of goodwill and
certain intangible assets that were determined to have an indefinite life.

Global Payments completed the testing for impairment of goodwill during the second quarter ending
November 30, 2001 using the present value of expected future cash flows. The Company determined that the fair
value of the reporting units exceeds the carrying amount of the net assets, including goodwill of the respective
reporting units. Therefore, no impairment charge to goodwill is required. No other changes in amortization
periods were required for other intangible assets (See Note 7).

Other intangible assets primarily represent customer lists and merchant contracts associated with
acquisitions. Customer lists and merchant contracts are amortized using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives of 10 to 30 years. The useful lives for customer lists/merchant contracts are determined
based primarily on information concerning start/stop dates and yearly attrition.

The Company had one indefinite life intangible asset, a trademark with a carrying value at June 1, 2001 of
$24.6 million. The trademark was acquired on April 1, 1996 with the purchase of 92.5% ownership interest in
MasterCard International’s Merchant Automated Point-of-Sale Program, or MAPP. The value of the trademark
related to the use of the MAPP name and logo. In connection with the spin-off from NDC, the Company
launched a significant rebranding effort under the Global Payments Inc. name and logo. In addition, effective
June 1, 2001, the Company purchased MasterCard’s remaining minority interest, ending all existing marketing
alliances with MasterCard under the MAPP brand and began conducting a study related to the future use of the
trademark.

In fiscal 2002, the Company obtained an appraisal from an independent valuation firm of the fair value of
the trademark as of June 1, 2001, the implementation date of SFAS No. 142. Based on the lack of continuing use
of the MAPP trademark as of June 1, 2001, the fair value of the trademark was determined to be zero. In
accordance with SFAS No. 142, the $24.6 million ($16.0 million, net of tax) was written off as of June 1, 2001
and was recorded as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle.
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Impairment of long-lived assets—The Company regularly evaluates whether events and circumstances have
occurred that indicate the carrying amount of property and equipment and other intangible assets may warrant
revision or may not be recoverable. When factors indicate that these long-lived assets should be evaluated for
possible impairment, the Company assesses the recoverability by determining whether the carrying value of such
long-lived assets will be recovered through the future undiscounted cash flows expected from use of the asset and
its eventual disposition. In management’s opinion, the long-lived assets, including property and equipment and
other intangible assets are appropriately valued at May 31, 2002 and May 31, 2001.

Investments—The Company held a $5 million investment in eCharge Corporation, a private company that
offers Internet users secure and convenient ways to make purchases over the Internet. During the fourth quarter
ending May 31, 2001, the Company completed an evaluation of this investment as it had experienced difficulty
securing additional funding. As a result, management determined the carrying value of the investment was not
recoverable and recognized a loss on investment of $5.0 million in fiscal 2001.

Income taxes—Deferred income taxes are determined based on the difference between the financial
statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities using enacted tax laws and rates (see Note 10).

Fair value of financial instruments—Management considers that the carrying amounts of financial
instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, receivables, line of credit, accounts payable and accrued
liabilities approximate fair value.

Foreign currency translation—The Company has foreign subsidiaries operating in Canada and the United
Kingdom, whose functional currency is their local currency. Gains and losses on transactions denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies are included in determining net income for the period in which
exchange rates change. The assets and liabilities of subsidiaries operating in foreign currencies are translated at
the year-end rate of exchange, and income statement items are translated at the average rates prevailing during
the year. The resulting translation adjustment is recorded as a component of shareholders’ equity. Translation
gains and losses on intercompany balances of a long-term investment nature are also recorded as a component of
shareholders’ equity. The effects of foreign currency gains and losses arising from these translations of assets and
liabilities are included as a component of other comprehensive income.

Segment disclosure—The Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No.
131, “Disclosure About Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information.” The Company’s chief operating
decision making group currently operates one reportable segment—electronic transaction processing—therefore
the majority of the disclosures required by SFAS No. 131 do not apply to the Company. The Company’s measure
of segment profit is operating income. The Company’s results of operations and its financial condition are not
significantly reliant upon any single customer. Revenues from external customers from the Company’s service
offerings are as follows:

2002 2001 2000
(in thousands)
Merchant SErVICES . . .. oo vttt e e e $ 449,144 §$ 334,979 $ 318,262
Fundstransfer ....... ... .. ... . . . . . 13,682 18,216 21,771

$ 462,826 $ 353,195 $ 340,033

The Company’s operations are provided in the United States, Canada, and Europe. The following is a
breakdown of revenues by geographic region:

2002 2001 2000
(in thousands)
United States .. ...t $ 340,230 § 328,054 $ 332,873
Canada ... ... . e 120,815 23,183 4,545
Europe ... . 1,781 1,958 2,615

$ 462,826 $ 353,195 § 340,033
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Earnings per share—Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing reported earnings available to
common shareholders by weighted average shares outstanding during the period. Earnings available to common
shareholders are the same as reported net income for all periods presented. For periods prior to the Distribution
Date, weighted average shares outstanding is computed by applying the distribution ratio of 0.8 of a share of the
Company for each NDC share held to the historical NDC weighted average shares outstanding for the same
periods presented.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing reported earnings available to common shareholders by
weighted average shares outstanding during the period and the impact of securities that, if exercised, would have
a dilutive effect on earnings per share. All options with an exercise price less than the average market share price
for the period generally are assumed to have a dilutive effect on earning per share. The dilutive effect of stock
options was 1.4 million shares and 0.3 million shares in fiscal 2002 and 2001, respectively. No additional
securities were outstanding that could potentially dilute basic earnings per share that were not included in the
computation of diluted earnings per share. Diluted earnings per share is not presented for the year ended May 31,
2000 as Global Payments stock options did not exist prior to the Distribution Date.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share for the years ended
May 31, 2002 and 2001:

2002 2001
Income Shares  Per Share Income Shares  Per Share
(in thousands, except per share data)
Basic EPS:
Income before cumulative effect of a change
in accounting principle ................ $ 39,839 36,589 $ 1.09 $ 23,668 28,616 $ 0.83
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting
principle . ... .. (15,999) 36,589 0.44) — 28,616 —
Net income available to common
shareholders ........................ $§ 23,840 36,589 §$ 0.65 $ 23,668 28,616 $ 0.83
Diluted EPS:
Income before cumulative effect of a change
in accounting principle ................ $ 39,839 38,009 $ 105 §$ 23,668 280916 $ 0.82
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting
principle ........ ... ... . ... (15,999) 38,009 (0.42) — 28916 —
Net income available to common
shareholders ................... .. ... $ 23,840 38,009 S 0.63 § 23,668 28916 § 0.82

Impact of new accounting pronouncements—Effective June 1, 2001, Global Payments adopted Statements
of Financial Accounting Standard No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”
(“SFAS No. 133”). SFAS No. 133 requires that a company recognize derivatives as assets or liabilities on its
balance sheet, and also requires that the gain or loss related to the effective portion of derivatives designated as
cash flow hedges be recorded as a component of other comprehensive income. The Company has not used any
derivative instruments and the adoption of this statement was not material.

In August 2001, the FASB issued Statements of Financial Accounting Standard No. 143, “Accounting for
Asset Retirement Obligations” (“SFAS No. 1437). SFAS No. 143 addresses financial accounting and reporting
for obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets and associated asset retirement costs.
SFAS No. 143 applies to legal obligations associated with the retirement of long-lived assets that result from the
acquisition, construction, development and/or normal operation of a long-lived asset. Under SFAS No. 143, these
legal obligations should be recognized in the period in which they are incurred and amortized to expense over the
life of the asset. This Statement is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after June
15, 2002 although earlier application is encouraged. This Statement will be adopted effective June 1, 2002. The
Company has not historically incurred nor expects prospectively to incur material obligations associated with the
retirement of long-lived assets.
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In October 2001, the FASB issued Statements of Financial Accounting Standard No. 144, “Accounting for
the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Asset” (“SFAS No. 1447). SFAS No. 144 addresses financial
accounting and reporting for the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets. This Statement is effective for
financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001, and interim periods within those
fiscal years, with early application encouraged. This Statement will be adopted effective June 1, 2002. The
Company believes that the effects of the adoption of SFAS No. 144 will not be material.

NOTE 3—BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS

During the fiscal years 2002 and 2001, the Company acquired the following businesses and assets:

Percentage
Business Date Acquired Ownership
202
MasterCard International Corporation 7.5% Minority Interest in Global
Payment Systems LLC, a subsidiary of the Company . .................. June 1, 2001 100%
National Bank of Canada (‘National Bank”)—Merchant Acquiring
Portfolio .. ... October 1, 2001 100%
01
Brennes-Jones Group Merchant Portfolio .............. ... ... ... ..... November 21, 2000 100%
Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce (“CIBC”) Merchant Acquiring
BUSINESS ..o March 20, 2001 100%
Comerica Bank—Imperial Bank Merchant Portfolio ..................... May 31, 2001 51%

These acquisitions have been recorded using the purchase method of accounting, and accordingly, the
purchase price has been allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair
value as of the date of acquisition. The operating results are included in the Company’s consolidated statements
of income from the date of the acquisition.

In August 2001, Global Payments purchased the 7.5% minority interest owned by MasterCard International
Corporation in Global Payment Systems LLC. The transaction was effective as of June 1, 2001, with a purchase
price of $15.0 million.

On October 1, 2001, the Company acquired National Bank of Canada’s merchant acquiring portfolio and
formed a ten-year alliance for marketing merchant payment-related products and services to National Bank of
Canada’s customers. The purchase price was $45.9 million (U.S.), at the then current Canadian exchange rate.
This acquisition was completed to compliment the Company’s existing Canadian customer portfolio and broaden
the Company’s presence in Canada.
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The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at
the date of the acquisitions.

National Bank MasterCard
Merchant Minority Interest
Acquiring Portfolio Buyout
(in thousands)

Property and equipment, net . ............ . ... o $ 128 $§ —

Customer LISt . ... 18,473 —
Goodwill .. ... 28,934 3,338
Total assets acquired ... ... ... ..o, 47,535 3,338

Current liabilities . ... (1,587) —
Purchased minority interest . ......... ... .. . i — 11,662
Netassetsacquired ........... .o, $ 45,948 $ 15,000

The amount assigned to the customer list for the National Bank merchant acquiring portfolio is being
amortized over 17 years. Of the amount assigned to goodwill, 100% is expected to be deductible for tax
purposes.

On March 20, 2001, the Company acquired substantially all the net assets of the merchant acquiring
business of Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce, and formed a ten year marketing alliance with CIBC to offer
merchant payment-related products and services to CIBC’s customers. In exchange for the net assets acquired,
the Company issued CIBC approximately 9.8 million unregistered shares of our common stock with a fair value
of $133.6 million and paid CIBC a cash purchase price adjustment of $10.1 million. The deferred cash purchase
price adjustment was a negotiated, formula driven amount based on the financial performance of business from
the date of the definitive agreement to the closing.

The net assets of the CIBC merchant acquiring business consisted of accounts receivable of $60.6 million,
property and equipment of $14.1 million, accounts payable and accrued liabilities of $7.5 million, and an
obligation under a capital lease of $0.6 million. The difference in total consideration of $143.7 million and the
net tangible assets acquired created an excess of $77.1 million. The excess was allocated to merchant contracts in
the amount of $44.4 million and goodwill in the amount of $32.7 million, with an estimated useful life of 17
years and 20 years, respectively.

The aggregate cash price paid for the acquisitions in 2001 of $23.4 million is detailed as follows (in
thousands): ’

2001
Fair value of assets acquired . ... ... $ 175,457
Liabilities assumed . ... ... oo e e e (8,445)
Deferred purchase price .. .. ...t e (10,082)
Common stock issued (9,764,623 shares) ...........cuiriiiit i (133,580)
Cash paid for aCqUiSitions . . . .. ...ttt e e e e $ 23,350

The excess of cost over tangible assets acquired totaled $117.0 million, with $52.7 million allocated to
goodwill and $64.3 million to customer lists/merchant contracts. The depreciable and intangible assets are being
amortized over periods ranging from 2 to 20 years.

The following unaudited pro forma information for the purchase acquisitions discussed above has been
prepared as if the 2002 and 2001 acquisitions had occurred on June 1 of the preceding year. The information is
based on historical and estimated results of the separate companies and may not necessarily be indicative of the
results that would have been achieved or of results that may occur in the future. The pro forma information
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includes the expense for amortization of other intangible assets resulting from these transactions and interest
expense related to financing costs but does not reflect any synergies or operating cost reductions that may be
achieved from the combined operations.

2002 2001 2000
(In thousands, except per share data)
Revenue . ... ... . e $ 473,242 § 473,218 § 444,470
Income before cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle . ... 39,236 29,361 39,326
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, netoftax ... ... .. (15,999) — —
NELINCOME ..o\ttt et e e $ 23237 $ 29361 $ 39,326
Diluted earnings per share before cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle ... ... .. $ 1.03 § 076 $ — (D
Diluted earnings per share after cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle ... .. ... i $ 0.61 $ 076 $ —

(1) Diluted earnings per share is not presented for the year ended May 31, 2000 as Global Payments stock
options did not exist prior to the Distribution Date.

NOTE 4—TRANSACTIONS WITH NDC

In conjunction with the Distribution, the Company and NDC entered into various agreements that address
the allocation of assets and liabilities between them and that define their relationship after the Distribution,
including the Distribution Agreement, the Tax Sharing and Indemnification Agreement, the Employee Benefits
Agreement, the Lease Agreement for Office Headquarters, the Intercompany Systems/Network Services
Agreement, the Batch Processing Agreement and the Transition Support Agreement. In fiscal 2002 and 2001, the
Company paid NDC $15.1 million and $2.4 million, respectively, for transitional services.

The Company was charged with incremental corporate costs through the Distribution Date in the amount of
$4.7 million in fiscal 2001 and $5.0 million in fiscal 2000. These allocations were based on an estimate of the
proportion of corporate expenses related to the Company, utilizing such factors as revenues, number of
employees, number of transactions processed and other applicable factors.

The Company was also charged corporate interest expense through January 31, 2001 based on the corporate
debt allocations of NDC to the Company at the Distribution Date. The Company utilized a rollback approach to
allocate the portion of the NDC consolidated group’s debt and interest expense for all historical periods
presented. This treatment records the debt allocation percentage for all historical periods presented. The allocated
portion of the consolidated group’s debt was presented as due to NDC. Interest expense recorded by the
Company related to this debt was $3.1 million in fiscal 2001 and $4.6 million in fiscal 2000 and is included in
interest and other expense. NDC did not charge any incremental interest expense to the Company after the
Distribution Date.

NOTE 5—PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
As of May 31, 2002 and May 31, 2001, property and equipment consisted of the following:

2002 2001
(In thousands)

Property under capital leases .. ... .. $ 15,880 $ 11,760
BEqQuipment . .. ... 52,652 45,454
Software . ... .. 29,129 20,380
Leasechold improvements . . ... ...ttt i e 3,451 2,273
Furniture and fIXTUIES .« 5,625 3,041
WOTK IN PIOZIESS oottt et e e 10,647 8,749

117,384 91,657
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization . ....................... 63,741 47,321

$ 53,643 $ 44,336
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NOTE 6—SOFTWARE COSTS

The following table sets forth information regarding the Company’s costs associated with software
development for the years ended May 31, 2002, May 31, 2001 and May 31, 2000. These amounts exclude other

expenditures for product improvements, customer requested enhancements, maintenance and Year 2000
remediation.

2002 2001 2000
(In thousands)
Total costs associated with software development ................. $ 5790 $ 6437 $ 2,623

Less: capitalization of internally developed software ............... 1,156 1,891 884

.......................... $ 4634 $ 4,546 $ 1,739

Net research and development expense

The Company capitalizes costs related to the development of computer software developed or obtained for
internal use in accordance with the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Statement of
Position 98-1, “Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use.” Costs

incurred in the application development phase are capitalized and amortized over the useful life, not to exceed
five years.

Total unamortized capitalized software costs (purchased and internally developed) were approximately
$13.4 million and $8.1 million as of May 31, 2002 and May 31, 2001, respectively. Total software amortization
expense was $3.4 million, $2.9 million and $2.6 million in fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

NOTE 7—GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, adopted on June 1, 2001, the Company discontinued the amortization of
goodwill and certain intangible assets that were determined to have an indefinite life. As of May 31, 2002,
intangible assets consisted of customer lists of $210.1 million and accumulated amortization of $68.8 million.
The weighted average amortization period is 18 years.

As of May 31, 2001, goodwill and intangible assets consisted of the following:

2001
Customer lists/merchant CONIACTS . ... ..ottt et e et e $ 160,114
Trademarks . . ..o e 28,273
GoodWill . .o e e 137,281
Otherintangibles ... ... ... e 32,256
357,924
Less: accumulated amortization . ... ... ... . . 80,549

5 277,375

Amortization expense was $11.1 million, $11.0 million and $10.3 million for fiscal years 2002, 2001 and
2000, respectively.

The estimated amortization expense for the next five fiscal years is as follows (in thousands):

2003 $ 11,497
2004 o $ 11,472
2005 L $ 11,263
2006 .. e $ 10,948
2007 $ 8525




The following table discloses the changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the period ended May 31,

2002:
Goodwill
(in thousands)
Balance as of May 31, 2001 . ... ..ot $ 118,791
Goodwill acquired during the year ............ . i, 32,272
Adjustments to goodwill for prior year acquisitions ............. ... ... .. 649
Balance as of May 31,2002 . .. .. ..o $ 151,712

The impact of the change in accounting principle for fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000 was as follows:
2002 2001 2000

(in thousands)

Net income:
Reported Net iNCOME . . ..ottt it $ 23,840 $ 23,668 § 33,047
Add back: Goodwill amortization, netoftax ....................... — 2,524 1,964
Add back: Trademark amortization, netoftax ..................... — 433 435
Adjusted netincome . . ... 23,840 26,627 35,446
Add back: Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of
72D, 15,999 — —
Adjusted income before cumulative effect of change in accounting
PCIPLE oot $ 39,839 § 26,627 §$ 35446
Basic earnings per share:
Reported netincome . ...... .. .. .. i i $ 065 $ 083 $§ 1.24
Adjusted NEtINCOME . .. ..ottt e e $ 065 $ 093 § 133
Diluted earnings pershare: . ........ . i e
Reported netincome . . ... it $ 063 § 082 § — )
Adjusted NEtINCOME . ... ..\ttt et e e $ 063 § 092 § — (1)
Basic per share income before cumulative effect of change in accounting
PrinCIple ... e
Reported . ..ot $ 109 $ 083 § 124
Adjusted ... e $ 109 $ 093 § 133
Diluted per share income before cumulative effect of change in accounting
Principle . ... e
REPOTTEA . . oot ettt e $ 105 $ 082 $ — (D
Adjusted .. ... $ 105 % 092 8 — (D

(1) Diluted earnings per share is not presented for the year ended May 31, 2000 as Global Payments stock
options did not exist prior to the Distribution Date.

NOTE 8—ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES
As of May 31, 2002 and May 31, 2001, accounts payable and accrued liabilities consisted of the following:

2002 2001
(In thousands)
Trade accounts payable . . ...ttt $ 12,133 % 10,133
Accrued compensation and benefits ......... .. .. .. . . . 9,027 7,667
Deferred purchase price on acquisition ... ......... .. .. i, — 10,082
Accrued TesStrUCtUNINE . .. oot it e e et e e e 7,304 2,347
Accrued third party processing eXpenses . ... ... .....ueiiaentiinan. 8,142 2,951
Accrued transitional SEIVICES . ... vttt e e 8,504 2,862
Other accrued liabilities .. ... ... ... . i i e e 18,052 11,874

$ 63,162 3 47916
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NQOTE 9—RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Prior to the Distribution, the Company participated in the NDC noncontributory defined benefit pension
plan (the “NDC Plan”) covering substantially all of its United States employees who have met the eligibility
provisions of the NDC Plan as of May 31, 1998. During fiscal 1998, NDC made an evaluation of its current
retirement plan offerings and decided to provide its employees with a greater emphasis on its deferred
compensation 401(k) plan by substantially increasing the employer match of participants’ contributions. At the
same time, NDC closed the defined benefit pension plan to new participants beginning June 1, 1998. Benefits are
based on years of service and the employee’s compensation during the highest five consecutive years of earnings
of the last ten years of service. Plan provisions and funding meet the requirements of the Employee Retirement
Income Security Act of 1974, as amended. Effective on the Distribution Date, the Company established the
Global Payments defined benefit pension plan (the “Global Payments Plan”) and NDC transferred to this plan a
proportionate share of assets allocable to the accrued benefits for the Company’s participants under the NDC
Plan. The expenses for fiscal 2000 for the NDC Plan were allocated to the Company based on the relative
projected benefit obligations for all the Company’s employees compared with the obligations for all participants.
In the opinion of management, the expenses for fiscal 2000 were allocated on a reasonable basis. Expenses for
fiscal 2002 and 2001 were actuarially determined.

The following table provides a reconciliation of the changes in the benefit obligations and fair value of
assets over the two-year period ending May 31, 2002 and a statement of funded status at May 31 for each year:

Changes in benefit obligations

2002 2001
(In thousands)
Balance at beginning of year . ...... ... i i i e $ 6,612 § 6,119
SeIVICE COSt . .ot e — —
Interest COSt .ot 495 474
AMENAIMENTS . . .ottt e e e e e — 31
Benefits paid .. ... ... (23) —
Actuarial (gain) orlaSs . ... ... e 175 12)
Balance atend of year . .. ... ... . e $ 7,259 $ 6,612
Changes in plan assets
2002 2001
(In thousands)
Balance at beginning 0f Year .. ...... ...ttt e $ 5,031 $6,186
Actual return on plan assets .. ... ... 96 (1,155)
Employer contributions . .......... . e — —
Benefits paid ... ... (23) —
Balance atend of year .. ... ... ..ot $ 5,104 $§ 5,031

The accrued pension costs recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheet were as follows:

2002 2001
(In thousands)
Funded statis ... oottt $ (2,155) $ (1,581)
Unrecognized net1oss .. . ... ..o e 1,884 1,370
Unrecognized Prior SEIVICE COSE . ..o vttt e e e 33 54
Unrecognized net asset at June 1, 1985, being amortized over 17 years ........ — 42)
Accrued PENSION COSE . ...ttt ettt $ (238) § (199)




Net pension expense (income) included the following components for the fiscal years ending May 31:

2002 2001

(In thousands)
Service cost-benefits earned during the period .............. ... ... .. ... $ — § —
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation .. ....... ... . ... . . ... 495 474
Expected returnon plan assets ... i (502) 618)
Net amortization and deferral ........ . ..o i (20) 30
Recognized actuarial oss ....... .. 67 —
Net pension expense (INCOME) . . ... vvu ittt ittt e $ 40 $ (174)

Significant assumptions used in determining net pension expense and related obligations were as follows:

2002 2001
DISCOUNLTALE . ...ttt e e e 7.50%  7.50%
Rate of increase in compensation levels ............ ... . .. ... oo 433%  4.33%
Expected long-term rate of return on assets .. ........c....v it 10.00% 10.00%

Prior to the Distribution, the Company participated in the NDC deferred compensation 401(k) plan.
Expenses of $1.0 million and $0.6 million were allocated to the Company in proportion to total payroll for fiscal
2001 (through January 31, 2001) and 2000, respectively. Effective February 1, 2001, the Company established
the Global Payments Inc. 401(k) Plan. The plan provides tax deferred amounts for each participant consisting of
employee elective contributions and matching Company contributions. In addition to the expense allocations
mentioned above, the Company contributed $1.2 million and $0.3 million to the Global Payments Inc. 401(k)
Plan in fiscal 2002 and 2001, respectively.

NOTE 10—INCOME TAXES

Prior to the Distribution Date, the Company had been included in the consolidated federal income tax return
of NDC. Tax provisions were settled through the intercompany account and NDC made income tax payments on
behalf of the Company (See Note 15). The Company’s provision for income taxes in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income reflects federal and state income taxes calculated on the Company’s separate
income.

The provision for income taxes includes:

2002 2001 2000
(In thousands)
Current tax expense:
Federal ... .. e $ 20,398 $ 17,200 $ 16,266
S . e e 1,495 1,310 780

21,893 18,510 17,046

Deferred tax expense (benefit):

Federal ...... ... . 2,516 (3,402) 3,389
S . v 215 (292) 290
2,731 (3,694) 3,679

Total ..o $ 24,624 $ 14,816 $ 20,725

In addition in fiscal 2002, $8.6 million was recorded as a tax benefit as a result of the cumulative effect of
the change in accounting principle (See Note 2). $9.4 million of this amount is a deferred tax benefit, while
$0.8 million is a current tax expense.
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The Company’s effective tax rates differ from federal statutory rates as follows:

2002 2001 2600

Federal StatRfory Tate ... ..ottt 350% 350% 350 %
State income taxes, net of federal income tax benefit .................... 1.7 1.7 1.3
Foreign inCome taXes .. ..o vttt e e 1.3 1.0 —
Non-deductible amortization and write-off of intangible assets ............ 0.2 23 1.6
Tax Credits ...t it e 0.4) (0.8) 0.5
Other . o 4 0.7 1.1
Effective taX rate ... ... it e 382% 385% 385%

Deferred income taxes as of May 31, 2002 and May 31, 2001 reflect the impact of temporary differences
between the amounts of assets and liabilities for financial accounting and income tax purposes. As of May 31,
2002 and May 31, 2001, principal components of deferred tax items were as follows:

2002 2001
(In thousands)

Deferred tax assets:

Accrued expenses and other ... .. ... ... . L $ 1,607 $ 1,751
Accrued restructuring and non-cash loss on investment .............. .. ........ .. 4,159 4,233
Bad debtexpense .............. e e e 1,140 161
Property and eqUIPMent . ... ...ttt e 621 —
7,527 6,145

Deferred tax liabilities:
Acquired intangibles . ... .. .. 2,457 6,546
Prepaid eXpenses . ... oo e 569 168

Property and eqUIPIMENt .. ... ... e — 1,550
3,026 8,264
Net deferred tax asset (liability) .. ... . ..o 4,501 (2,119
Less: Current net deferred tax asSel . . ..ot vttt e e 6,289 5,118

Net non-current deferred tax liability .. ... ... .. .. . $ (1,788) $ (7,237)

A valuation allowance is provided when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax
assets will not be realized. The Company has not established valuation allowances for these tax assets.

NOTE 1I—SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Stock Options—NDC had certain Stock Option Plans (the “Plan”) under which incentive stock options and
non-qualified stock options have been granted to officers, key employees and directors of NDC. In connection
with the separation of the Company from NDC, stock options under the Plan held by employees of the Company
that were not exercised prior to the date of the Distribution were replaced with options of Global Payments. In
accordance with the provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 44 (“FIN 44,” “Accounting for Certain Transactions
Involving Stock Compensation™), NDC stock options were replaced with Global Payments stock options in
amounts and at exercise prices intended to preserve the economic benefit of the NDC stock options at such time.
No compensation expense resulted from the replacement of the options. The exercise price of such options range
from $3.26 to $20.90. As a result, options for 2,364,849 shares of Global Payments common stock were issued to
replace NDC options under the Global Payments Inc. 2000 Long-Term Incentive Plan (“The 2000 Plan”). The
Company also has a Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan (“The Director Plan™), which provides for grants
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of options to directors who are not employees with the Company. A summary of changes in all outstanding
options and the related weighted average exercise price per share is as follows:

The 2000 Plan The Director Plan
Weighted Weighted
Avg. Exercise Price Avg. Exercise Price
Shares Per Share Shares Per Share
QOutstanding at May 31,2000 .................. — — — —
Granted: .. ... ..
Replacement options . .................... 2,364,849 $ 12,97 — § —
New Options . ........c.vuvirerninnnnnn.. 103,301 17.16 23,920 20.90
Cancelled . ........... ... ... ... ......... (8,648) 11.51 — —
Exercised .......... ... .. .. (18,499) 7.18 — —
Outstanding at May 31,2001 .................. 2,441,003 13.20 23,920 20.90
Granted ............ ... . ... ... 708,768 26.48 16,808 29.75
Cancelled . .......... ..ot . (124,999) 13.54 — —
Exercised ......... ... ... (324,430) 12.83 — —
Outstanding at May 31,2002 .................. 2,700,342 $ 16.71 40,728 $ 2455
Shares available for future grant . ............... 2,682,806 359,272
The following table summarizes information about all stock options outstanding at May 31, 2002:
Options Qutstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Average
Remaining
Range of Contractual Weighted Average Weighted Average
Exercise Prices Shares Life in Years Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price
$ 3.26-84.73 5,244 0.95 $ 464 5,244 $ 4.64
$ 546 30,763 2.00 5.46 30,763 5.46
$ 9.83-$13.07 1,110,721 5.98 11.49 512,735 11.17
$ 14.66-$19.01 853,097 7.14 16.38 303,189 16.38
$ 20.90-$34.58 741,245 _819 26.31 4,339 24.63
2,741,070 7.10 $ 16.83 856,270 $ 12.84

The weighted-average grant-date fair value per share of options granted in 2002 under the 2000 Plan and the
Director Plan is $12.70 and $14.39, respectively. The weighted-average grant-date fair value per share of
replacement options and options granted in 2001 under the 2000 Plan and the Director Plan is $(10.09) and
$11.39, respectively. The negative fair value under the 2000 Plan in fiscal 2001 resulted from the remeasurement
and replacement of outstanding options.

The fair value of each option granted in fiscal 2002 and 2001 is estimated on the date of grant using the
Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following assumptions used for the grants during the respective
fiscal year:

2002 2001

2000 Plan

Risk-free intereSt rates .. ... .ttt 3.75% 4.80%

Expected volatility . ... ... ... e 45% 45%

Dividend yields . . ... o 0.7% 0%

Expected lIVeS . . ..ot 7 years 7 years
Director Plan

Risk-free intereSt rates .. ... ... iu it e e 3.75% 5.03%

Expected volatility . ....... ... i 45% 45%

Dividend yields . ... ... ... .. 0.7% 0%

Expected Lives . . ...t e e 7years 7 years




ik,

Employee Stock Purchase Plan—The Company has an Employee Stock Purchase Plan under which the sale
of 1,200,000 shares of its common stock have been authorized. Employees may designate up to the lesser of
$25,000 or 20% of their annual compensation for the purchase of stock. The price for shares purchased under the

J plan is the lower of 85% of market value on the first day or the last day of the quarterly purchase period. At
5 May 31, 2002, 79,077 shares have been issued under this plan, with 1,120,923 shares reserved for future
issuance.
4 The weighted-average grant-date fair value per share granted in fiscal 2002 and 2001 under the Employee
BE Stock Purchase Plan is $6.90 and $4.15, respectively.
; The fair value of each share granted under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan is estimated on the date of
] grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model using the following assumptions:
2002 2001
Risk-free Interest rates . .. ...t 3.75% 4.68%
i Expected volatility . ....... ... ... 45% 45%
1 Dividend yields ... ........ .o 0.8% 0%
E Expected lives . ... ... i 3 months 3 months
; The Company has chosen the disclosure option under SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
1 Compensation” and continues to apply Accounting Principles Board, (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for
] Stock Issued to Employees,” and related interpretations in accounting for its plans. Accordingly, no
= compensation cost has been recognized for options granted under the plans. Had compensation cost for these
: 'j plans been recognized based on the fair value of the options at the replacement date and the grant dates for
4 awards under the plans consistent with the method of SFAS No. 123, the Company’s net income and diluted
N earnings per share would have been reduced to the following pro forma amounts:
- 2002 2001 2000
: : (In thousands, except
] per share data)
E Net income:
AsTeported .. ... $23,840 $23,668 $33,047
ProfOrMa ........oouunte et e $20,853 $20,695 $31,428
Diluted earnings per share:
ASTEPOTEEA . . ..o\ttt e e et e e $ 063 $ 082 —
Pro forma . .............oiiii $ 055 $ 072 — )
(1) Diluted earnings per share is not presented for the year ended May 31, 2000 as Global Payment stock
. options did not exist prior to the Distribution Date.

Pro forma income for 2000 noted above is based on the fair value of NDC options held by Global Payments’
employees.

Restricted Stock—NDC had performance share plans for certain key officers that provided for distribution of
common stock at the end of grant specified measurement periods, in the form of restricted stock. As of the
Distribution, the Company’s officers that were participants in the NDC Plan were granted 256,565 restricted
shares of the Company under the restricted stock program to replace the awards previously granted under the
NDC Plan. Shares awarded under the restricted stock program are held in escrow and released to the grantee
upon the grantee’s satisfaction of conditions of the grantee’s restricted stock agreement. Awards are recorded as
deferred compensation, a reduction of shareholders’ equity based on the quoted fair market value of the
Company’s common stock at the award date. Compensation expense is recognized ratably during the escrow
period of the award. The compensation cost that was charged against income for restricted stock was $1.1 million
in both 2002 and 2001.
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NOTE 12—RESTRUCTURING AND OTHER

The Company recorded restructuring and other charges in each of the two fiscal years ended May 31, 2002,
During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002, the Company completed plans for the closing of four locations including
associated management and staff reductions of 150 personnel. Total charges for the year ended May 31, 2002 are
categorized as follows:

Total Cash Non-cash

{In thousands)
Closed or planned closings of facilities ......................... $ 1,512 $ 910 $ 602
Severance and related COStS ... ... 6,715 5,884 831
e COSES o\ttt it e 2,766 — 2,766
TOtalS . $ 10,993 $ 6,794 $ 4,199

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001, the Company completed plans for the closing of six locations
including associated management and staff reductions. For the year ended May 31, 2001, total charges were $4.9
million and are categorized as follows:

Taotal Cash Non-cash

(In thousands)
Closed faCilItIES ...\ o ittt e e $ 1416 $ 1,075 $ 341
Severance and related COSIS .. ...ttt 3,466 1,610 1,856
Totals ..o $ 4882 % 2,685 $ 2,197

The charges relating to facilities represent locations that are either already closed or have management
approved plans to be closed within twelve months of incurring the charges. These charges included future
minimum lease and operating payments, commencing on the planned exit timing, for all noncancelable leases
under remaining terms of the locations identified, net of current and estimated future sublease income. The
charges also include facility exit costs and an estimate of the net book value of leasehold improvements and
furniture and fixtures that will not be realizable when the facilities are vacated. Normal lease payments, operating
costs and depreciation will continue to be charged to operating expenses prior to actually vacating the specific
facilities.

The severance and related costs arise from the Company’s actions to reduce personnel in areas of redundant
operations and activities. These operations are those that related to the facility consolidation, recent acquisitions
and integration of acquisition functions. The charges reflect specifically identified employees whose employment
will be terminated and were informed by the time the charges were incurred. The non-cash costs associated with
the severance and related costs reflect compensation expense due to the acceleration of the vesting of certain
stock options for those employees that were terminated and had options outstanding.

The other costs incurred in the year ended May 31, 2002 relate to the book value of certain current assets
that were deemed to be unrecoverable after the purchase of MasterCard’s remaining minority interest in Global
Payment Systems LLC (See Note 3).

The cash items were accrued at the time the charges were incurred. As of May 31, 2002, $7.3 million of the
cash portion of the restructuring charges from fiscal 2002 and 2001 remains accrued as a current liability in the
accrued liabilities section of the balance sheets as follows:

2002 Charge 2001 Charge

Original Payments Remaining Original Payments Remaining
Total to Date Liability Total to Date Liability

(In thousands)
Closed or planned closings of
faciliies .. ................... $§ 910 $ 261 $ 649 $1075 $1,004 $§ 71
Severance and related costs ....... 5,884 —_ 5,884 1,610 910 700
Totals ........................ $ 6,794 $ 261 $ 6533 $2,68 §$ 1914 $ 771

42




bk kel b g i il b

ahibitaiibababif “ TR

|

!

L e i s s s B i bk bbb bbb g i e bbb L

[

oo ]

As of May 31, 2001, $0.3 million of the $2.7 million of the cash portion of the restructuring charge had been
paid in severance and related costs. The remaining restructuring charges of $1.1 million relating to facilities
closing costs and $1.3 million relating to severance and related costs were accrued as a current liability in the
accrued liabilities section of the balance sheet.

NOTE 13—RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In connection with the fiscal 2001 purchase of CIBC’s merchant acquiring business, CIBC holds
approximately 26.5% of the Company’s outstanding common stock. CIBC provides transition services under an
agreement to provide various support services to the merchant acquiring business for a 24-month period
commencing on the acquisition date of March 20, 2001. The purpose of the agreement is to facilitate the
integration into our existing operations. These services include customer service, credit and debit card processing
and settlement functions. For the years ended May 31, 2002 and May 31, 2001, the Company incurred expenses
of approximately $31.1 million and $11.2 million, respectively, related to these services.

In addition, the Company has a credit facility from CIBC that provides a line of credit up to $140 million
(Canadian dollars), approximately $91 million U.S. dollars. See Note 14.

NOTE 14—COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Leases

The Company conducts a major part of its operations using leased facilities and equipment. Many of these
leases have renewal and purchase options and provide that the Company pay the cost of property taxes, insurance
and maintenance.

Rent expense on all operating leases for fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000 was $7.6 million, $4.7 million and
$5.8 million, respectively.

Futare minimom lease payments for all noncancelable leases at May 31, 2002 were as follows:

Capital ~ Operating
Leases Leases

(In thousands)

2008 L $ 3208 $ 6,791
2004 1,853 6,329
200 e 1,461 5,284
2006 . . 1,461 4,776
2007 . e 771 4,346
Thereafter . ... ... .. — 17,070
Total future minimum lease payments .............c..co.venienininarnan.. 8,754 § 44,596
Less: amount representing interest .. ... ........c.envririrn . 1,444
Present value of net minimum lease payments . ............c.oiuinnienaon.. 7,310
Less: current POrtion .. ... u .ttt et e 2,599
Long-term obligations under capital leases at May 31,2002 ................. $ 4,711

Legal

The Company is party to a number of claims and lawsuits incidental to its business. In the opinion of
management, the ultimate outcome of such matters, individually or in the aggregate, will not have a material
adverse impact on the Company’s financial position, liquidity or results of operations.

43




Line of Credit

The Company has a commitment for a $123 million revolving line of credit. It was initially used to fund the
cash due to NDC to reflect the Company’s share of NDC’s pre-distribution debt used to establish the Company’s
initial capitalization. This line of credit is also available to meet working capital needs and financing acquisitions.
This line has a variable interest rate based on a market short-term floating rate plus a margin that varies
according to the Company’s trailing four quarter leverage ratio. The credit agreement contains certain financial
and non-financial covenants customary for financings of this nature. The facility has a three-year term, expiring
in January 2004. The full amount outstanding is due upon demand, therefore, the Company classifies the amount
as a current liability. As of May 31, 2002 and 2001, the Company had $22 million and $73 million, respectively,
outstanding under this facility.

On October 1, 2001, the Company obtained a commitment for a $25 million revolving credit facility to
finance working capital and other general corporate purposes. This line has a variable interest rate based a market
short-term floating rate plus a margin. The credit agreement contains certain financial and non-financial
covenants customary for financings of this nature. The facility has a sixteen-month term, expiring in January
2003. There were no amounts outstanding at May 31, 2002 on this credit facility.

The Company also has a credit facility from CIBC that provides a line of credit up to $140 million
(Canadian dollars), approximately $91 million U.S., with an additional overdraft facility available to cover larger
advances during periods of peak usage of credit and debit cards. This line has a variable interest rate based on a
market short-term floating rate plus a margin. It contains customary covenants and events of default. This line of
credit is secured by a first priority security interest in our accounts receivable from VISA Canada/International,
and has been guaranteed by our subsidiaries. This guarantee is subordinate to our primary credit facility. The
CIBC credit facility had an initial term of 364 days expiring March 19, 2002, and is renewable annually at
CIBC’s option. The Company renewed the CIBC credit facility for 120 days beginning March 20, 2002 through
July 19, 2002. Subsequent to year-end, the Company renewed this facility through November 29, 2002. There are
no amounts outstanding under the CIBC credit facility as of May 31, 2002 and 2001.

BIN/ICA Agreements

In connection with the Company’s acquisition of merchant credit card operations of banks, the Company
has also entered into depository and processing agreements (the “Agreements”) with certain of the banks. These
Agreements allow the Company to use the banks’ identification numbers (“BIN/ICA”) to clear credit card
transactions through VISA and MasterCard. Certain agreements contain financial covenants, and the Company
was in compliance with all such covenants as of May 31, 2002 or had obtained a verbal waiver of such
covenants. In management’s opinion, the Company would be able to obtain alternative BIN/ICA agreements
without material impact to the Company in the event of the termination of these Agreements.

NOTE 15—SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Supplemental cash flow disclosures and non-cash investing and financing activities for the years ended
May 31, 2002, May 31, 2001 and May 31, 2000 are as follows:

2002 2001 2000
(In thousands)

Supplemental cash flow information:

Income taxes paid, netofrefunds . ................ ... ... ... .... $ 22966 $ 7,718 $ 5816

Interestpaid ....... .. i 3,312 6,015 8,506
Supplemental non-cash investing and financing activities:

Capital leases entered into in exchange for property and equipment . . . .. 5,876 — 915

Common stock issued in consideration for acquisitions .............. — 133,580 —
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Historically through the Distribution Date, the Company’s cash flow had been calculated with and included
in the NDC consolidated group’s Supplemental Cash Flows. The Company’s payments for income taxes have
been calculated on the Company’s separate income and reflect federal and state income tax payment allocations
as if the Company had been operating on a stand-alone basis (Note 10). The Company has utilized a “rollback”
approach to allocate the portion of the consolidated group’s interest payments for all historical periods presented
(Note 4).

NOTE 16—QUARTERLY CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

Quarter Ended
August 31 November 30 February 28 May 31
(In thousands, except per share data)

2002
Revenue ............ i, $ 110,955 $ 115,617 $ 115,283 $ 120,971
Operating inCome . . ... vvv i 22,687 20,782 17,995 9,954
Income before cumulative effect of a change in

accounting principle .. ....... ... oL 12,874 11,643 10,275 5.047
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting

principle net of tax benefit of $8,614 ........... (15,999) —_ —_ —
Netincome (108S) .. ..., (3,125)(3) 11,643 10,275 5,047
Basic earningspershare . ...................... (0.09)(3) 0.32 0.28 0.14
Diluted earnings pershare ..................... 0.093) 0.31 0.27 0.13

200;1
Revenue ... ... ... .. . i $ 87,191 $ 82,631 $ 80,674 $ 102,699
Operating INCOME . . ..o oviv i 16,581 15,972 11,966 8,527
Netincome .. ........ .. it 8,649 8,407 5,846 766
Basic earnings pershare . .. .................... 0.33 (1) 0.32(1) 0.22(1) 0.02
Diluted earnings per share ..................... — @ — (2) 0.22 0.02

(1) Using the distribution ratio of 0.8 share of Global Payments Inc. common stock for each share of NDC
common stock held. Weighted average shares outstanding is computed by applying the distribution ratio to
the historical NDC weighted average shares outstanding through January 31, 2001.

(2) Diluted earnings per share is not presented in the Quarterly Consolidated Financial Information for periods
prior to November 30, 2000, as Global Payments stock options did not exist prior to the Distribution Date.

(3) The net income and earnings per share data for fiscal 2002 in the above table does not agree to amounts
reported in the Company’s unaudited interim financial statements included in the Company’s quarterly
report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended August 31, 2001, due to the cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle of $16.0 million recorded effective June 1, 2001.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AS TO SCHEDULE

We have audited in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States, the financial
statements included in Global Payments Inc.’s annual report to shareholders incorporated by reference in this
Form 10-K, and have issued our report thereon dated July 17, 2001. Qur audit was made for the purpose of
forming an opinion on those statements taken as a whole. The schedule below is the responsibility of Global
Payments’ management and is presented for purposes of complying with the Securities and Exchange
Commission’s rules and is not part of the basic financial statements. This schedule has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, fairly states in all
material respects the financial data required to be set forth therein in relation to the basic financial statements
taken as a whole.

Arthur Andersen LLP

Atlanta, Georgia
July 17,2001

EXPLANATORY NOTE REGARDING REPORT OF
INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

On May 2, 2002, Global Payments Inc. decided to no longer engage Arthur Andersen LLP as its
independent public accountants and engaged Deloitte & Touche LLP to serve as its independent public
accountants for the year ending May 31, 2002. More information regarding Global Payments Inc.’s change in
independent public accountants is contained in a current report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 7, 2002.

We could not obtain permission of Arthur Andersen LLP to the inclusion in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K of the Report of Independent Public Accountants above. Accordingly, the Report of Arthur Andersen
LLP above covering the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 14 for the fiscal years ended May
31, 2001 and 2000 is merely reproduced from Global Payments Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended May 31, 2001 and does not include the manual signature of Arthur Andersen LLP. See “Risk Factors—
The conviction of our former independent auditors, Arthur Andersen LLP, on federal obstruction of justice
charges may adversely affect Arthur Andersen LLP’s ability to satisfy any claims arising from the provision of
auditing services to us and may impede our access to the capital markets.”
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GLOBAL PAYMENTS INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE T

Valuation & Qualifying Accounts

Column A Column B Column C Column D Column E
Balance at Char]éed to 2 Uncollectible Balance at
Beginning  Costs and  Acquired Accounts End
Description of Period Expenses Balances Write-Off of Period
(In thousands)
Trade Receivable Allowances
May 31,2000 ... ... $ 1202 $§ 1345 § — $ 1,316 § 1,231
May 31,2001 ... . i R 1,231 1,970 — 2,003 1,198
May 31,2002 ... e 1,198 1,255 — 1,490 963

Allowance for operational losses—Merchant card
Processing (1)

May 31,2000 . ... ... 885 2,985 — 3,419 451
May 31,2001 ... .. e 451 8,398 — 7,306 1,543
May 31,2002 ... 1,543 9,756 1,659 10,856 2,102
(1) Included in Net Merchant processing receivable/

payable
Allowance for claim losses—Check guarantee

Processing
May 31,2000 ....... .. 3,708 10,089 — 10,118 3,679
May 31,2001 . ... . 3,679 9,949 — 9,183 4,445
May 31,2002 ... ... 4,445 12,354 — 13,566 3,233

ITEM 9—CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

On May 7, 2002, Global Payments filed a Current Report on Form 8-K. Item 4—“Changes in Registrant’s
Certifving Accountant” was filed as follows:

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of Global Payments Inc. annually considers and
recommends to the Board the selection of Global Payments’ independent public accountants. As recommended
by Global Payments’ Audit Committee, Global Payments’ Board of Directors on May 2, 2002 decided to dismiss
Arthur Andersen LLP (“Andersen”) as Global Payments’ independent public accountants and engaged Deloitte
& Touche LLP to serve as Global Payments’ independent public accountants for the remainder of the fiscal year
ending May 31, 2002 and thereafter.

Andersen’s reports on Global Payments’ consolidated financial statements for the past two years did not
contain an adverse opinion or disclaimer of opinion, nor were they qualified or modified as to uncertainty, audit
scope or accounting principles. Andersen recently completed the SAS 71 review Global payments’ consolidated
financial statements for the third quarter ended February 28, 2002. Global Payments filed its third quarter report
on Form 10-Q with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 5, 2002.

During Global Payments’ two most recent fiscal years and through the date of this Form 8-K, there were no
disagreements with Andersen on any matter of accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure,
or auditing scope or procedure which, if not resolved to Andersen’s satisfaction, would have caused Andersen to
make reference to the subject matter in connection with their report on Global Payment’s consolidated financial
statements for such years; and there were no reportable events, as listed in Item 304(a)(1)(v) of Regulation S-K.
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Global Payments’ provided Andersen with a copy of the foregoing disclosures. Attached as Exhibit 16 is a
copy of Andersen’s letter, dated May 7, 2002, stating its agreement with such statements,

During Global Payments two most recent fiscal years and through the date of this Form 8-K, Global
Payments’ did not consult Deloitte & Touche LLP with respect to the application of accounting principles to a
specified transaction, either completed or proposed, or the type of audit opinion that might be rendered on Global
Payments’ consolidated financial statements, or any other matters or reportable events listed in Items
304(a)(1)(iv) and (v) of Regulation S-K.

The exhibit filed with this document, a letter from Arthur Andersen LLP to the Securities and Exchange
Commission dated May 7, 2002, has not been included herein. See Current Report on Form 8-K, filed May 7,
2002,
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PART III

ITEM 10—DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

We incorporate by reference in this Item 10 information about our directors contained under the heading
“Proposal 1—Election of Directors; Nominees—Certain Information Concerning Nominee and Directors” and
information about compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 by our directors
and executive officers under the heading “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” from our

proxy statement to be delivered in connection with our 2002 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on
QOctober 22, 2002.

Set forth below is information relating to our executive officers. There is no family relationship between any
of our executive officers or directors and there are no arrangements or understandings between any of our
executive officers or directors and any other person pursuant to which any of them was elected an officer or
director, other than arrangements or understandings with our directors or officers acting solely in their capacities
as such. Our executive officers serve at the pleasure of our board of directors.

Position with Global Payments and

Name ﬁg_e Current Position(s) Other Principal Business Affiliations
Paul R. Garcia ........ 50 President and Chief President and Chief Executive Officer of Global
Executive Officer Payments (since September 2000); Chief Executive

Officer of NDC eCommerce (July 1999-January 2001);
President and Chief Executive Officer of Productivity
Point International (March 1997-September 1998);
Group President of First Data Card Services (1995-
1997); Chief Executive Officer of National Bancard
Corporation (NaBANCQO) (1989-1995).

James G. Kelly ....... 40  Chief Financial Officer =~ Chief Financial Officer of Global Payments (since
September 2000); Chief Financial Officer of NDC
eCommerce (April 2000-January 2001); Managing
Director with Alvarez & Marsal (March 1996-April
2000); Director with Alvarez & Marsal (1992-1996)
and Associate with Alvarez & Marsal (1990-1992);
and Manager with Ernst & Young’s mergers and
acquisitions/audit groups (1989-1990).

Barry W. Lawson .. ... 55 Chief Information Officer Chief Information Officer of Global Payments (since
September 2000); Chief Information Officer of NDC
eCommerce (November 1999-January 2001); CEO
Systems and Network Consultants (April 1996—
October 1999); and Chief Operating Officer of
National Bancard Corporation (NaBANCQ) (August
1993-March 1996).

Jeffery C. McWey ... .. 46  Chief Marketing Officer ~ Chief Marketing Officer of Global Payments (since
October 2001); Former Non-Executive Chairman of
Damian Services Corporation, Chicago (2000-2002);
Member of the Board of Directors of The Outsourcing
Institute, New York (since 2000); Senior Vice
President & Group Executive of ChoicePoint Inc.
(Formerly part of Equifax) (January 1999-March
2000); President of Elrick & Lavidge, Inc. (Sold from
Equifax) (August 1995-June 1998) Senior Vice
President & General Manager of The Marketing
Services Group of Equifax Inc. (January 1994-August
1995); Vice President of The Dun & Bradstreet
Corporation (March 1980-January 1994).
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ITEM 11—EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

We incorporate by reference in this Item 11 the information relating to executive compensation contained
under the heading “Proposal 1—EFElection of Directors; Nominees—Other Information about the Board and its
Committees” and “Compensation and Other Benefits” from our proxy statement to be delivered in connection
with our 2002 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on October 22, 2002. The information contained in the
proxy statement under the sections entitled “Shareholder Return Analysis” and “Report of the Compensation
Committee” is specifically not incorporated by reference in this Item 11.

ITEM 12—SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

We incorporate by reference in this Item 12 the information relating to ownership of our common stock by
certain persons contained under the headings “Election of Directors—Common Stock Ownership of
Management” and “—Common Stock Ownership by Certain Other Persons” from our proxy statement to be
delivered in connection with our 2002 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on Cctober 22, 2002.

The Company has two compensation plans under which equity securities of the Company are authorized for
issuance. The Global Payments Inc. 2000 Long-Term Incentive Plan and the Non-Employee Director Stock
Option Plan have been approved by security holders. For more information on these plans, see Note 11 to Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Number of securities
remaining available for

Number of securities to be ~ Weighted-average exercise future issuance under
issued upen exercise of price of cutstanding equity compensation plans
outstanding options, options, warrants and (excluding securities
warrants and rights rights reflected in column (a))
Plan category (a) (b) (c)

Equity compensation plans approved
by security holders: ............. 2,741,070 $16.83 3,042,078
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders: . . . .. — —

Total ........ ... ... i 2,741,070 $16.83 3,042,078

ITEM 13—CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

We incorporate by reference in this Item 13 the information regarding certain relationships and related
transactions between us and some of our affiliates contained under the heading “Certain Transactions” from our
proxy statement to be delivered in connection with our 2002 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on
October 22, 2002.
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PART IV

ITEM 14—EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K
(a) 1. Consolidated Financial Statements

Cur consolidated financial statements listed below are set forth in Item 8 of this report:

I

i ;l.l b e i b

” Page
- Number
Report of Independent AUdItors .. ... i 20
- Report of Independent Public Accountants ........... ... .. i 21
j Explanatory Note Regarding Report of Independent Public Accountants .............. ... .... 21
: % Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended May 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 .......... 22
= Consolidated Balance Sheets as of May 31,2002and 2001 ........ ... ... ... ..., 23
é Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended May 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 .. ..... 24
b Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity for the years ended May 31, 2002,
3 2001, 2000 and 1099 . ... e 25
= Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements .. ...... ... oriein e, 26
%
] (a) 2. Financial Statement Schedules
Report of Independent Public Accountants Asto Schedule ........ ... ... ... ... .. ... .. 43
Explanatory Note Regarding Report of Independent Public Accountants ..................... 43
Schedule II, Valuation and Qualifying ACCOUNLS .. ... ...ttt e 44

All other schedules to our consolidated financial statements have been omitted because they are not required
under the related instruction or are inapplicable, or because we have included the required information in our
consolidated financial statements or related notes.
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(a) 3. Exhibits

Lohikea b

The following exhibits either (i) are filed with this report or (ii) have previously been filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission and are incorporated in this Item 14 by reference to those prior filings.

il

Gl

2.1 Distribution Agreement, Plan of Reorganization and Distribution dated January 31, 2001 by and between
National Data Corporation and Global Payments Inc., filed as Exhibit 2.1 to the Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated January 31, 2001, File No. 001-16111, and incorporated herein by reference.

3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Global Payments Inc., filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the

Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 31, 2001, File No. 001-16111, and incorporated
herein by reference.

b

R

3.2 Amended and Restated By-laws of Global Payments Inc., filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated January 31, 2001, File No. 001-16111, and incorporated herein by reference.

4.1 Shareholder Protection Rights Agreement dated January 26, 2001 between Global Payments Inc. and
SunTrust Bank, filed as Exhibit 99.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 1,
2001, File No. 001-16111, and incorporated herein by reference.

- 4.2 Form of certificate representing Global Payments Inc. common stock as amended, filed as Exhibit 4.4 to
2 the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form 10 dated December 28, 2000, File No. 001-16111, and
incorporated herein by reference.
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10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9%

10.10*

10.11*

10.12%*

10.13*

10.14%

10.15%

Tax Sharing and Indemnification Agreement between National Data Corporation and Global Payments
Inc. dated as of January 31, 2001, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K
dated January 31, 2001, File No. 001-16111, and incorporated herein by reference.

Employee Benefits Agreement between National Data Corporation and Global Payments Inc. dated as
of January 31, 2001, filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
January 31, 2001, File No. 001-16111, and incorporated herein by reference.

Transition Support Agreement between National Data Corporation and Global Payments Inc. dated as
of January 31, 2001, filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
January 31, 2001, File No. 001-16111, and incorporated herein by reference.

Intercompany Systems/Network Services Agreement between National Data Corporation and Global
Payments Inc. dated as of January 31, 2001, filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K dated January 31, 2001, File No. 001-16111, and incorporated herein by reference.

Batch Processing Agreement between National Data Corporation and Global Payments Inc. dated as of
January 31, 2001, filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
January 31, 2001, File No. 001-16111, and incorporated herein by reference.

Lease Agreement for Office Headquarters between National Data Corporation and Global Payments
Inc. dated as of January 31, 2001, filed as Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K
dated January 31, 2001, File No. 001-16111, and incorporated herein by reference.

Sublease Agreement dated as of January 31, 2001 between Global Payment Systems LLC and National
Data Corporation, filed as Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
January 31, 2001, File No. 001-16111, and incorporated herein by reference.

Sublease Agreement dated as of January 31, 2001 between National Data Corporation and National
Data Payment Systems, Inc., filed as Exhibit 10.8 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
January 31, 2001, File No. 001-16111, and incorporated herein by reference.

Amended and Restated 2000 Long-Term Incentive Plan, filed as Exhibit 10.9 to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form 10 dated December 28, 2000, File No. 001-16111, and incorporated
herein by reference.

2000 Non-Employee Stock Purchase Plan, filed as Exhibit 99.2 to the Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-8 dated January 16, 2001, File No. 001-16111, and incorporated herein by
reference.

Amended or Restated 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan filed as Exhibit 99.3 to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S-8 dated January 16, 2001, File No. 001-16111, and incorporated
herein by reference.

Form of Global Payments Inc. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan as amended, filed as Exhibit
10.12 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form 10 dated December 28, 2000, File Ne. 001-
16111, and incorporated herein by reference.

Employment Agreement for Paul R. Garcia, as amended, filed as Exhibit 10.13 to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form 10 dated December 28, 2000, File No. 001-16111, and incorporated
herein by reference.

Employment Agreement for Thomas M. Dunn, as amended, filed as Exhibit 10.14 to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form 10 dated December 28, 2000, File No. 001-16111, and incorporated
herein by reference.

Employment Agreement for James G. Kelly, as amended, filed as Exhibit 10.15 to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form 10 dated December 28, 2000, File No. 001-16111, and incorporated
herein by reference.
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10.16*

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

Employment Agreement for Barry W. Lawson, as amended, filed as Exhibit 10.16 to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form 10 dated December 28, 2000, File No. 001-16111, and incorporated
herein by reference.

Operating Agreement of Global Payment Systems LLC, dated March 31, 1996, as amended, filed as
Exhibit 10.17 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form 10 dated December 28, 2000, File No.
001-16111, and incorporated herein by reference.

Registration Rights Agreements between Global Payment Systems LLC and MasterCard International
Incorporated, dated April 1, 1996 as amended, filed as Exhibit 10.18 to the Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form 10 dated December 28, 2000, File No. 001-16111, and incorporated herein by
reference.

Asset Purchase Agreement with Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce, as amended, filed as Exhibit
10.19 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form 10 dated December 28, 2000, File No. 001-
16111, and incorporated herein by reference.

Investor Rights Agreement with Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce as amended, filed as Exhibit
10.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 20, 2001, File No. 001-16111, and
incorporated herein by reference.

Form of Marketing Alliance Agreement with Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce as amended, filed
as Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 20, 2001, File No. 001-
16111, and incorporated herein by reference.

Transition Agreement with Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce, filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 20, 2001, File No. 001-16111, and incorporated
herein by reference.

Stock Purchase Agreement with Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 20, 2001, File No. 001-16111, and incorporated
herein by reference.

Credit Agreement with Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce filed as Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 20, 2001, File No. 001-16111, and incorporated herein by
reference.

Credit Agreement dated as of January 31, 2001, among Global Payments Inc., Bank One, N.A., as
Administrative Agent, Wachovia Bank, N.A., as Documentation Agent, and the Lenders named therein,
filed as Exhibit 10.25 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended May
31, 2001, File No. 001-16111, and incorporated herein by reference.

First Amendment dated March 20, 2001 to the Credit Agreement dated as of January 31, 2001 among
Global Payments Inc., Bank One, N.A., as Administrative Agent, Wachovia Bank, N.A., as
Documentation Agent, and the Lenders named therein, filed as Exhibit 10.26 to the Registrant’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2001, File No. 001-16111, and incorporated
herein by reference.

Second Amendment dated May 14, 2001, among Global Payments Inc., Bank One, N.A., as
Administrative Agent, Wachovia Bank, N.A., as Documentation Agent, and the Lenders named therein.
filed as Exhibit 10.27 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended May
31, 2001, File No. 001-16111, and incorporated herein by reference.

Third Amendment dated July 25, 2001, among Global Payments Inc., Bank One, N.A_, as
Administrative Agent, Wachovia Bank, N.A., as Documentation Agent, and the Lenders named therein.
filed as Exhibit 10.28 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-X for the fiscal year ended May
31, 2001, File No. 001-16111, and incorporated herein by reference.
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10.29**  First Amendment dated May 31, 2001 to the Credit Agreement among Global Payments Direct, Inc.,
Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce and the Lenders named therein.

10.30**  Credit agreement dated as of September 26, 2001, between Global Payments Inc. and SunTrust Bank.

10.31%*  Agreement for Information Technology Services Between Global Payment Systems, LLC and
Electronic Data Systems Corp. dated October 1, 2001.

10.32*%**  Employment Agreement for Jeffery C. McWey dated October 26, 2001.

10.33 Second Amendment dated as of March 20, 2002 to the Credit Agreement among Global Payments
Direct, Inc., Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce, and the Lenders named therein, filed as Exhibit
10 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 10-Q dated February 28, 2002, File No. 001-16111,
and incorporated herein by reference.

10.34**  Fourth amendment dated as of April 30, 2002, by and among Global Payments Inc., Bank One, N.A.,
as Administrative Agent, SunTrust Bank as Documentation Agent, Wachovia Bank, N.A. as
Syndication Agent and the Lenders named therein.

10.35*%*  First amendment dated as of April 30, 2002, by and among Global Payments Inc. and SunTrust Bank.
21%* List of Subsidiaries.
23** Independent Auditors’ Consent.

99 1%* Risk Factors

* Compensatory management agreement

**  Filed with this report

*%%  Compensatory management agreement and filed with this report
(b) Reports filed on Form 8-K

On May 7, 2002, Global Payments filed a Current Report on Form 8-K to disclose pursuant to Item 4 of
Form 8-K, that on May 2, 2002, the Board of Directors decided to dismiss Arthur Andersen LLP as the
Company’s independent public accountants and engaged Deloitte and Touche LLP to serve as the Company’s
independent public accountants for the remainder of the fiscal year ending May 31, 2002 and thereafter.

(¢) Exhibits
See Item 14(a)(3) above.

(d) Financial Statement Schedules

See Item 14(a)(2) above.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Global
Payments Inc. has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly

authorized, on August 28, 2002.

GLOBAL PAYMENTS INC.

By: /s/ PAUL R. GARCIA

Paul R. Garcia
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

By: /s/ JaMES G. KELLY

James G. Kelly
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer and
Chief Accounting Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by a
majority of the Board of Directors of the Registrant on the dates indicated.

Signature

/s/ ROBERT A. YELLOWLEES

Robert A. Yellowlees

/s/ C. GARRY BETTY

C. Garry Betty

/s/ EDWIN H. BURBA, JR.

Edwin H. Burba, Jr.

/s/  GiLLIAN (JILL) DENHAM

Gillian (Jill) Denham

/s/  PaUL R. GARCIA

Paul R. Garcia

/s/  ALEX W. (PETE) HART

Alex W, (Pete) Hart

/s/  WiLLIAM I JACcOBS

William 1 Jacobs

/s/ RICHARD E. VENN

Richard E. Venn

Chairman of the Board

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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August 27, 2002

August 24, 2002

August 26, 2002

August 26, 2002
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Exhibit
Numbers

10.29

10.30
10.31

10.32
10.34

10.35
21
23
99.1

GLOBAL PAYMENTS INC.
FORM 10-K
INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Description
First Amendment dated May 31, 2001 to the Credit Agreement among Global Payments Direct, Inc.,
Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce and the Lenders named therein.
Credit agreement dated as of September 26, 2001, between Global Payments Inc. and SunTrust Bank.

Agreement for Information Technology Services Between Global Payment Systems, LLC and
Electronic Data Systems Corp. dated October 1, 2001,

Employment Agreement for Jeffery C. McWey dated October 26, 2001.

Fourth amendment dated as of April 30, 2002, by and among Global Payments Inc., Bank One, N.A.,
as Administrative Agent, SunTrust Bank as Documentation Agent, Wachovia Bank, N.A. as
Syndication Agent and the Lenders named therein.

First amendment dated as of April 30, 2002, by and among Global Payments Inc. and SunTrust Bank.
List of Subsidiaries
Independent Auditors’ Consent

Risk Factors
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Exhibit 99.1

RISK FACTORS

The conviction of our former independent auditors, Arthur Andersen LLP, on federal obstruction of justice
charges may adversely affect Arthur Andersen LLP’s ability to satisfy any claims arising from the provision of
auditing services to us and may impede our access to the capital markets.

Arthur Andersen LLP, which audited our financial statements for the years ended May 31, 2001 and 2000,
was indicted in March 2002 on federal obstruction of justice charges arising from the government’s investigation
of Enron Corporation. Arthur Andersen was tried on such charges by a jury and found guilty on June 15, 2002. In
light of the jury verdict and the underlying events, Arthur Andersen LLP has informed the SEC that it will stop
practicing before the Commission by August 31, 2002, unless the Commission determines that another date is
appropriate. The SEC has stated that, for the time being, it will continue accepting financial statements audited
by Arthur Andersen LLP. It is possible that events arising out of the conviction may adversely affect the abtlity
of Arthur Andersen LLP to satisfy any claims arising from its provision of auditing services to us, including
claims that could arise out of Arthur Andersen LLP’s audit of our financial statements included in our periodic
reports, prospectuses or registration statements filed with the SEC.

Should we seek to access the public capital markets, SEC rules will require us to include or incorporate by
reference in any prospectus three years of audited financial statements. The SEC’s current rules would require us
to present audited financial statements for one or more fiscal years audited by Arthur Andersen LLP and obtain
their consent and representations until our audited financial statements for the fiscal year ending May 31, 2004
become available in the first quarter ended August 31, 2004. We expect that we would not be able to obtain the
necessary consent and representations from Arthur Andersen LLP. The audit partner and substantially all of the
audit team who audited our financial statements are no longer with Arthur Andersen LLP, and that firm would
likely not agree to issue a consent or make any representations in their absence. As a result, we may not be able
to satisfy the SEC requirements for a registration statement or for our periodic reports. Even if the SEC decides
to accept financial statements previously audited by Arthur Andersen LLP, but without their current consent and
representations, those financial statements would not provide us and any underwriters with the same level of
protection under the securities laws as would otherwise be the case. In either of these situations, our access to the
capital markets would be impaired unless Deloitte & Touche LLP, our current independent accounting firm, or
another independent accounting firm, is able to audit the financial statements originally audited by Arthur
Anderson LLP. Any delay or inability to access the public capital markets caused by these circumstances could
have a material adverse effect on our business, profitability and growth prospects.

The integration of the operations of National Bank of Canada’s, or National Bank’s merchant acquiring
business could result in increased operating costs if the anticipated synergies of operating both businesses as one
are not achieved, a loss of strategic opportunities if management is distracted by the integration process, and a
loss of customers if our service levels drop during or following the integration process.

The integration of the National Bank merchant acquiring business with ours presents several challenges,
including the fact that it is entirely based in Canada, where we currently have limited operations. If the
integration process does not proceed smoothly, the following factors could reduce our revenues, increase our
operating costs and result in a loss of the projected synergies of operating the National Bank merchant acquiring
business on our existing Canadian platform:

e if we are not successful in integrating the benefits plans, duties and responsibilities, and other factors of
interest to the management and employees of the acquired business, we could lose employees to our
competitors in Canada, which could significantly affect our ability to operate the business and complete
the integration;




o if the integration process causes any delays with the delivery of our services, or the quality of those
services, we could lose customers to our competitors; and

o the acquisition and the related integration could divert the attention of our management from other
strategic matters including possible acquisitions and alliances, and planning for new product
development or expansion into new electronic payments markets.

As a result of CIBC’s ownership of 26.5% of our common stock, certain banking regulations limir the types
of business in which we can engage.

As a result of CIBC’s ownership of 26.5% of our common stock, technically we are considered as though
we are a subsidiary of CIBC for purposes of certain U.S. banking regulations, and will be subject to the same
restrictions on our business activities as are applicable to CIBC. As a general matter, we are able to operate our
merchant service and funds transfer businesses as we have historically, but our ability to expand into unrelated
businesses may be limited unless they are activities permitted under the Bank Holding Company Act or permitted
by the Federal Reserve Board (the primary U.S. federal regulator for CIBC and its U.S.-based subsidiaries). The
applicable regulations are interpreted to mean that a company will be deemed a subsidiary of a bank holding
company, and therefore subject to the regulations, if the bank holding company owns 25% or more of the equity
of a company. These restrictions are contained in the Bank Holding Company Act, as amended by the Gramm-
Leach-Bliley Act. The restrictions on our business activities would also apply to any investments or alliances that
we might consider.

The Bank Holding Company Act limits CIBC and its subsidiaries to activities that are closely related to the
business of banking. Under the Gramm-Leach-Bliley amendments, certain well-managed and well-capitalized
companies may elect to be treated as “financial holding companies,” and may thus also engage in certain
financial activities such as insurance and securities underwriting. CIBC has elected to be a financial holding
company. If CIBC ever fails to maintain its status as a financial holding company, they and we would lose the
benefit of the expanded activities provided by the Gramm-Leach-Bliley amendments and may have to divest of
certain businesses or investments.

In being considered a subsidiary of CIBC for purposes of certain U.S. banking regulations, we will be
subject to supervision and examination by the Federal Reserve Board. We and CIBC are required to comply with
the Federal Reserve Board’s regulatory requirements prior to commencing new activities, engaging in
acquisitions or making new investments. Should CIBC fail to be in compliance with the Federal Reserve Board’s
regulatory requirements, it could affect our ability to obtain necessary approvals or clearances. Such limitations
could impede our ability to compete with other companies not subject to such restrictions.

Additionally, CIBC is subject to Canadian banking regulations, specifically the Bank Act (Canada), which
among other things limits the types of business which CIBC may conduct, directly or indirectly, and the types of
investments which CIBC may make. CIBC’s shareholding in our company is currently permitted under the Bank
Act. The Bank Act, except as we have discussed, does not otherwise apply to us.

Under the Bank Act, CIBC is continuing to hold its interest in us, as long as the business undertaken by us is
consistent with the applicable provisions of the Bank Act. If we undertake businesses inconsistent with the
businesses in which CIBC is permitted to hold an interest, CIBC may be required, pursuant to the provisions of
the Bank Act, to dispose of its shares prior to the expiration of the restrictions on re-sale that we have negotiated
with CIBC.

We have agreed with CIBC, in effect, that we will not undertake any business inconsistent with the
applicable provisions of the Bank Act. Our ability to expand into other businesses will be governed by the
undertaking and the applicable provisions of Canadian banking legislation at the relevant time. For a more
complete discussion of the banking regulations we are subject to please see “Business—Banking Regulations.”
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With the acquisition of CIBC’s merchant acquiring business and National Bank’s merchant acquiring
business, we are exposed to foreign currency risks. We are also subject to risks from our variable rate credit
facility with CIBC that could reduce our earnings and significantly increase our cost of capital.

As a result of acquiring the assets of CIBC’s merchant acquiring business and National Bank’s merchant
acquiring business, we have significant operations in Canada which will be denominated in Canadian doliars.
The repatriation of our earnings in Canada will subject us to the risk that currency exchange rates between

Canada and the United States will fluctuate and we will lose some of our earnings when they are exchanged into
U.S. dollars.

Additionally, our credit facility with CIBC carries an interest rate based on Canadian Dollar LIBOR
(CSLIBOR). This rate will fluctuate with market rates, and if it increases, our cost of capital will also increase
which will reduce our earnings from operations. The credit facility currently expires on November 29, 2002 and
is renewable only at the consent of CIBC. CIBC may choose not to renew the credit facility at which point we
will have to find alternative financing or fund the Canadian merchants ourselves. Alternative financing may carry
a higher interest rate which would reduce our earnings from operations. We may not have the cash flow
necessary to fund the Canadian merchants ourselves, and we may lose those customers as a result.

We are dependent on National Bank to continue to provide services to merchants under a transition
arrangement, and the failure of National Bank to provide those services could result in our loss of the business of
the merchants we are receiving in the acquisition.

National Bank continues to provide some services to the merchants included in the merchant acquiring
business we acquired from National Bank. If National Bank does not provide those services in a satisfactory
manner we may not be able to perform such services ourselves and may not be able to find other third party
service providers. In that instance, the merchants may terminate their contracts with us and move their business
to another electronic processing provider, which could have a significant effect on our revenues and earnings.

In order for us to continue to grow and increase our profitability, we must continue to expand our share of
the existing electronic payments market and also expand into new markets.

Our future growth and profitability depends upon our continued expansion within the electronic payments
markets in which we currently operate, the further expansion of these markets, the emergence of other markets
for electronic transaction processing, including internet payment systems, and our ability to penetrate these
markets. As part of our strategy to achieve this expansion, we are continually looking for acquisition
opportunities, investments and alliance relationships with other businesses that will allow us to increase our
market penetration, technological capabilities, product offerings and distribution capabilities. We may not be able
to successfully identify suitable acquisition, investment and alliance candidates in the future, and if we do, they
may not provide us with the benefits we anticipated. Once completed, investments and alliances may not realize
the value that we expect.

Our expansion into new markets is also dependent upon our ability to apply our existing technology or to
develop new applications to meet the particular service needs of each new payment services market. We may not
have adequate financial and technological resources to develop products and distribution channels that will
satisfy the demands of these new markets. If we fail to expand into new and existing electronic payments
markets, we will not be able to continue to grow our revenues and earnings.

In order to remain competitive and continue to increase our revenues, we must continually update our
products and services, a process which could result in increased research and development costs in excess of
historical levels and the loss of revenues and customers if the new products and services do not perform as
intended or are not accepted in the marketplace.

The electronic payments market in which we compete includes a wide range of products and services
including electronic transaction processing, reporting on transactions and other customer support services. The
market is characterized by technological change, new product introductions, evolving industry standards and
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changing customer needs. In order to remain competitive, we are continually involved in a number of research
and development projects. These projects carry the risks associated with any research and development effort,
including cost overruns, delays in delivery and performance problems, but in the electronic payments market
these risks are even more acute. OQur market is constantly experiencing rapid technological change. Any delay in
the delivery of new products or services could render them less desirable by our customers, or possibly even
obsolete. In addition, the products and services we deliver to the electronic payments market are designed to
process very complex transactions and deliver reports and other information on those transactions, all at very
high volumes and processing speeds. Any performance issue that arises with a new product or service could
result in significant processing or reporting errors. As a result of these factors, our research and development
efforts could result in increased costs that could reduce our operating profit, a loss of revenue if promised new
products are not timely delivered to our customers, or a loss of revenue or possible claims for damages if new
products and services do not perform as anticipated.

Some of our competitors are larger and have greater financial and operational resources than we do which
may give them an advantage in our market in terms of the price offered to customers or the ability to develop new
technologies.

We operate in the payments systems industry. Our primary competitors in this industry include other
independent processors, as well as certain major national and regional banks, financial institutions and
independent sales organizations. According to industry reports such as The Nilson Report, First Data Corporation
and its affiliates is the largest competitor in our industry. First Data and others who are larger than we are, have
greater financial and operational resources than we have. This may allow them to offer better pricing terms to
customers in the industry, which could result in a loss of our potential or current customers or could force us to
lower our prices as well. Either of these actions could have a significant effect on our revenues. In addition, our
competitors may have the ability to devote more financial and operational resources than we can to the
development of new technologies, including Internet payment processing services that provide improved
operating functionality and features to their product and service offerings. If successful, their development efforts
could render our product and services offerings less desirable to customers, again resulting in the loss of
customers or a reduction in the price we could demand for our offerings.

We are dependent on NDC for the provision of critical telecommunications services, network systems and
other related services for the operation of our business, and the failure of NDC to provide those services in a
satisfactory manner could affect our relationships with customers and our financial performance.

Under the terms of the intercompany systems/network services agreement between NDC and us, NDC will
provide us with a continuation of the telecommunication services from the carriers who have and will continue to
provide telecommunication services to NDC, including engineering and procurement. In addition, NDC will
supply us with the necessary network systems services, including operations and administrative services and
computing hardware and software facilities, technical support for transaction processing, cash management and
file transfer and communications hardware and software system services. These services, especially
telecommunications services, are an essential communications link between us and our customers and an
essential component of the services that we provide. If NDC should not continue to perform these services
efficiently and effectively, our relationships with our customers may be adversely affected and customers may
terminate their use of our services. If we are not able to successfully develop the capacity to provide these
services prior to the expiration of our agreement with NDC or if NDC does not provide such services in an
efficient and effective manner during the term of that agreement, we are not certain whether we could locate
alternative sources of such services, particularly telecommunications services, or that, if available, such services
would be available on favorable terms.

Reduced levels of consumer spending can adversely affect our revenues.

A significant portion of our revenues is derived from fees from processing consumer credit card and debit
card transactions. While consumer spending in the U.S. may be recovering, continued sluggishness of the U.S.
economy or recession in the international economies where we do business could negatively impact consumer
spending and adversely affect our revenues and earnings.
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Loss of strategic industries could reduce revenues and earnings.

Although our merchant portfolio is well diversified and neither one economic sector nor any customer
concentration represents a significant portion of our business, a decrease in strategic industries could cause us to
lose significant revenues and earnings. The travel and entertainment industry experienced substantial economic
loss over the past year. This did not have a material affect on our business during fiscal year 2002. Unexpected
and significant declines in travel and entertainment or other industries may impact our business and result in
decreases in revenues and profits.

Securiry breaches or system failures could harm our reputation and adversely affect future profits.

We collect personal consumer data, such as names, credit and debit account numbers, checking account
numbers, and payment history records. We process that data, and deliver our products and services, utilizing
computer systems and telecommunications networks operated both by us and by third party service providers.
Although plans and procedures are in place to protect our sensitive data and to prevent failure of, and to provide
backup for, our systems, we cannot be certain that our measures always will be successful. A security breach or
other misuse of our data, or failures of key operating systems and their back-ups, could harm our reputation and
deter customers from using our products and services, increase our operating expenses in order to correct the
breaches or failures, or expose us to unbudgeted liability.

Continued consolidation in the banking and retail industries could adversely affect our growth.

As banks continue to consolidate, our ability to successfully offer our services through the indirect channel
will depend in part on whether the institutions that survive are willing to outsource their credit and debit
processing to third-party vendors and whether those institutions have pre-existing relationships with any of our
competitors. Larger banks and larger merchants with greater transaction volumes may demand lower fees which
could result in lower operating margins for us.

We are subject to the business cycles and credit risk of our merchant customers.

A recessionary economic environment could affect our merchants through a higher rate of bankruptcy
filings resulting in lower revenues and profits for us. OQur merchants have the liability for any charges properly
reversed by the cardholder. In the event, however, that we are not able to collect such amounts from the
merchants, due to merchant fraud, insolvency, bankruptcy or another reason, we may be liable for any such
charges. We require cash reserve deposits, guarantees, letters of credit and other types of collateral by our riskier
merchants to minimize any such contingent liability. We also utilize a number of systems and procedures to
manage merchant risk. Any risks associated with an unexpected recessionary economy that we could not mitigate
may result in lower profits and revenues and earnings for us.

Utility and system interruptions or processing errors could adversely affect our operations.

In order to process transactions promptly, our computer equipment and network servers must be functional
on a 24-hour basis, which requires access to telecommunications facilities and the availability of electricity.
Further, with respect to certain processing services, we are dependent on the systems and services of third party
vendors. Telecommunications services and the electricity supply are susceptible to disruption. Computer system
interruptions and other processing errors, whether involving our own systems or our third party vendor’s system,
may result from such disruption or from human error or other unrelated causes. Any extensive or long-term
disruptions in our processing services could cause us to incur substantial additional expense, which could have an
adverse effect on our operations and financial condition.

Our revenues from the sale of services to VISA and MasterCard organizations are dependent upon our
continued VISA and MasterCard certification and financial institution sponsorship.

In order to provide our transaction processing services, we must be designated a certified processor by, and
be a member service provider of, MasterCard and an independent sales organization of VISA. These designations
are dependent upon our being sponsored by member clearing banks of both organizations and our continuing
adherence to the standards of the VISA and MasterCard associations. The member financial institutions of VISA




and MasterCard, some of which are our competitors, set the standards with which we must comply. If we fail to
comply with these standards, our designation as a certified processor, a member service provider or as an
independent sales organization could be suspended or terminated. The termination of our member service
provider status or our status as a certified processor, or any changes in the VISA and MasterCard rules that
prevent our registration or otherwise limit our ability to provide transaction processing and marketing services
for the VISA or MasterCard organizations would most likely result in the loss of these organizations as
customers and lead to a reduction in our revenues.

Increases in credit card association fees may result in the loss of customers or a reduction in our profit
margin.

From time to time, VISA and MasterCard increase the fees (interchange fees) that they charge processors
such as us. We could attempt to pass these increases along to our merchant customers, but this might result in the
loss of those customers to our competitors who do not pass along the increases. If competitive practices prevent
our passing along all such increased fees to our merchant customers in the future, we would have to absorb a
portion of such increases thereby increasing our operating costs and reducing our profit margin.

Loss of Key Independent Sales Organizations or 1SO’s could reduce our revenue growth.

Our ISO sales channel, which purchases and resells our end-to-end services to its own portfolio of merchant
customers, is a strong contributor to our revenue growth. If an ISO switches to another transaction processor, we
will no longer receive new merchant referrals from the ISO. In addition, we risk losing existing merchants that
were originally enrolled by the I1SO. Although we have generally attempted to protect ourselves against this type
of merchant attrition through contractual restrictions, we cannot assure you that such contractual restrictions will
be successful. In addition, it is generally difficult and time-consuming to move merchant portfolios from one
processor to another. Consequently, if a key ISO switches to another transaction processor, our revenues and
earnings could be negatively affected.

If we lose key personnel or are unable to attract additional qualified personnel as we grow, our business
could be adversely affected.

We are dependent upon the ability and experience of a number of our key personnel who have substantial
experience with our operation, the rapidly changing transaction processing industry, and the selected markets in
which we offer our services. It is possible that the loss of the services of one or a combination of our key
personnel would have an adverse effect on our operation. Our success also depends on our ability to continue to
attract, manage, and retain additional qualified management and technical personnel as we grow. We cannot
assure you that we will continue to attract or retain such personnel.

The credit risk of our direct merchant customers could adversely affect our revenues.

Our direct merchant customers have liability for any charges properly reversed by a cardholder. In the event,
however, that we are not able to collect such amounts from a merchant, due to merchant fraud, insolvency,
bankruptcy or another reason, we may be liable for any such reversed charges. We generally require cash
deposits, guarantees, letters of credit and other types of collateral by certain merchants to minimize any such
contingent liability. We also utilize a number of systems and procedures to manage merchant risk, and we hold
reserves for losses on our books. However, we cannot assure you that such procedures will be sufficient to cover
unanticipated losses, which may negatively affect our earnings and revenues.

We may become subject to additional U.S. state taxes that cannot be passed through to our merchant
customers, in which case our profitability could be adversely affected.

Transaction processing companies like us may be subject to taxation by various U.S. states on certain
portions of our fees charged to customers for our services. Application of these taxes is an emerging issue in our
industry and the states have not yet adopted uniform regulations on this topic. If we are required to pay such
taxes and are not able to pass the tax expense through to our merchant customers, our operating costs will
increase, reducing our profit margin.
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Anti-takeover provisions of our articles of incorporation and by-laws, our rights agreement and provisions
of Georgia law could delay or prevent a change of control that you may favor.

Provisions of our articles of incorporation and by-laws, our rights agreement and provisions of applicable
Georgia law may discourage, delay or prevent a merger or other change of control that shareholders may
consider favorable. The provisions of our articles and by-laws, among other things,

o divide our board of directors into three classes, with members of each class to be elected in staggered
three-year terms;

o limit the right of shareholders to remove directors;

o regulate how shareholders may present proposals or nominate directors for election at annual meetings
of shareholders; and

o authorize our board of directors to issue preferred shares in one or more series, without shareholder
approval.

Also, under Section 355(e) of the Internal Revenue Code, the spin-off from NDC will be treated as a taxable
transaction if one or more persons acquire directly or indirectly 50% or more of our or NDC’s stock (measured
by vote or value) as part of a plan or series of related transactions that is linked to the spin-off under the rules of
Section 355(e). For this purpose, any acquisitions of our stock or NDC stock within two years before or after the
spin-off are presumed to be part of such a plan, although NDC or we may be able to rebut that presumption by
relying on the Treasury Regulations for Section 355. If such an acquisition of our stock triggers the application of
Section 355(e), under the tax sharing agreement, we would be required to indemnify NDC for the resulting tax.
This indemnity obligation might discourage, delay or prevent a change of control that shareholders may consider
favorable.

We may not be able or we may decide not to pay dividends at a level anticipated by shareholders on our
common stock, which could reduce your return on shares you hold.

The payment of dividends is at the discretion of our board of directors and will be subject to our financial
results, our working capital requirements, the availability of surplus funds to pay dividends and restrictions under
our credit facility. No assurance can be given that we will be able to or will choose to pay any dividends in the
foreseeable future.
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Annual Report on Form 10-K

Included in this Annual Report to Shareholders is a copy of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended May 31, 2002, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Additional copies of the
Company’s Form 10-K will be sent to shareholders free of charge upon written request to:

Investor Relations Department
Global Payments Inc.

Four Corporate Square
Atlanta, Georgia 30329-2009
404.728.2719

For general information regarding Global Payments Inc., see our website at www.globalpaymentsinc.com

or contact us at:

Global Payments Inc.

Four Corporate Square
Atlanta, Georgia 30329-2009
800.560.2960

Annual Meeting
The Annual Meeting of Shareholders will be held at 11 a.m., October 22, 2002, at the offices of Global Payments,
Four Corporate Square, Atlanta, Georgia.

Independent Public Accountants
Deloitte & Touche LLP

General Counsel
Suellyn P. Tornay

Transfer Agent
SunTrust Bank

Post Office Box 4625
Atlanta, Georgia 30302
800.568.3476

Market Price and Dividend Information
Global Payments Inc. common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol “GPN.”
The high and low sales prices and dividend paid per share of the Company’s common stock for each quarter

during the last fiscal year were as follows:

Dividend
High Low per Share
Fiscal Year 2002 First Quarter $35.55 $26.05 $0.04
Second Quarter $35.65 $23.05 $0.04
Third Quarter $36.00 $30.35 $0.04
Fourth Quarter $38.42 $30.95 $0.04

@dvantage and VIP Preferred are trademarks of Global Payments Holding Company and may not be copied, imitated or used, in whole or in part, without
its prior written permission. All other trademarks, registered trademarks, product names and logos identified or mentioned herein are the property of their

respective owners.
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